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PART | FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MATERION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

ltem 1. Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of MaterionpGration and its subsidiaries for the secondtguand first half ended June 27,
2014 are as follows:

Consolidated Statements of Income -
Second quarter and first half ended June 27, 26d4Jane 28, 2013

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income -
Second quarter and first half ended June 27, 28d4Jane 28, 2013

Consolidated Balance Sheets -
June 27, 2014 and December 31, 2013

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows -
First half ended June 27, 2014 and June 28, 2013




Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income
(Unaudited)

Second Quarter Ended

First Half Ended

Jun. 27, Jun. 28, Jun. 27, Jun. 28,
(Thousands, except per share amounts) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Net sales 287,96! $ 306,14 $ 546,89: $ 605,31(
Cost of sales 238,16 260,14¢ 451,63: 510,97¢
Gross margin 49,80: 45,99: 95,26 94,33
Selling, general and administrative expense 34,68 33,32 65,94! 66,10¢
Research and development expense 3,44: 3,15¢ 6,23( 6,711
Other—net (2,895 2,95( (2,537 5,431
Operating profit 14,56¢ 6,561 25,62: 16,08:
Interest expense—net 672 81z 1,367 1,641
Income before income taxes 13,89¢ 5,74¢ 24,25 14,44;
Income tax expense 3,92 1,59:¢ 6,94¢ 3,50z
Net income 9,97¢ $ 4,155 % 17,308 $ 10,94(
Basic earnings per share:
Net income per share of common stock 0.4¢ $ 02C $ 084 $ 0.5:
Diluted earnings per share:
Net income per share of common stock 047 $ 02C $ 08z $ 0.52
Cash dividends per share 0.08: % 0.08(C % 0.16¢ $ 0.15¢
Weighted-average number of shares of common stockitstanding:
Basic 20,64: 20,56¢ 20,62¢ 20,52
Diluted 21,00: 20,86¢ 20,98:¢ 20,84

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(Unaudited)

Second Quarter Ended

First Half Ended

Jun. 27, Jun. 28, Jun. 27, Jun. 28,

(Thousands) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Net income 9,97¢ $ 4,15¢ 17,30t $ 10,94(
Other comprehensive income:

Foreign currency translation adjustment 12¢€ (62€) 71t (3,380)

Derivative and hedging activity, net of tax 80 (247) 87 15¢E

Pension and post employment benefit adjustmenpfrtaix 542 1,22( 9,92t 2,43¢
Net change in accumulated other comprehensive iacom T74€ 347 10,72 (786€)
Comprehensive income 10,72: $ 4,50z 28,03: $ 10,15

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Unaudited)
Jun. 27, Dec. 31,
(Thousands) 2014 2013
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 18,06: $ 22,77+
Accounts receivable 121,76t 113,01.
Inventories 254, 79( 232,80(
Prepaid expenses 16,64* 16,35
Deferred income taxes 10,34¢ 9,56¢
Total current assets 421,60t 394,50!
Long-term deferred income taxes 2,04¢ 4,67
Property, plant and equipment—cost 790,15: 782,87¢
Less allowances for depreciation, depletion andrénadion (538,09 (520,98¢)
Property, plant and equipment—net 252,05¢ 261,89:
Intangible assets 21,53¢ 24,24¢
Other assets 4,851 3,87«
Goodwill 88,75! 88,75
Total assets 790,85: $ 777,94
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Short-term debt 33,36¢ 3 35,56¢
Accounts payable 32,95¢ 36,55¢
Other liabilities and accrued items 47,83: 54,85
Income taxes 7,01 1,56¢
Unearned revenue 2,11¢ 47¢
Total current liabilities 123,29( 129,01¢
Other long-term liabilities 16,25: 16,53:
Retirement and post-employment benefits 56,94¢ 80,27¢
Unearned income 54,14 56,49(
Long-term income taxes 1,57¢ 1,57¢
Deferred income taxes 3,84: 1,46¢
Long-term debt 46,94¢ 29,267
Shareholders’ equity
Common stock 200,07¢ 197,57t
Retained earnings 455,37¢ 441,51¢
Common stock in treasury (121,306 (118,15)
Other comprehensive income (loss) (49,16)) (59,88¢)
Other equity transactions 2,861 2,26¢
Total shareholders' equity 487,85 463,32:
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 790,85« $ 777,94

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Unaudited)
First Half Ended
Jun. 27, Jun. 28,
(Thousands) 2014 2013
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 17,30t $ 10,94(
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash udén operating activities:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 22,09: 18,65¢
Amortization of deferred financing costs in intdregpense 35€ 32t
Stock-based compensation expense 3,027 2,67¢
Changes in assets and liabilities net of acquiredsaets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable (8,680 (5,156
Decrease (increase) in inventory (16,559 4,21
Decrease (increase) in prepaid and other currsetsas (2,65¢%) 9,02¢
Decrease (increase) in deferred income taxes 58 1,16¢€
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and acexpedses (8,965 (27,149
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue 1,63 (2,077%)
Increase (decrease) in interest and taxes payable 5,43 177
Increase (decrease) in long-term liabilities (11,419 2,40¢
Other-net (3,11 1,90¢
Net cash (used in) provided from operating activigs (1,489 18,12(
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payments for purchase of property, plant and eqgeippm (12,859 (13,029
Payments for mine development (337) (4,382
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 3,00¢ 67
Other investments-net 2 20
Net cash used in investing activities (20,189 (17,319
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repayment of short-term debt (4,886 (12,729
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 33,17( 70,24(
Repayment of long-term debt (15,49) (55,547
Debt issuance costs — (1,307
Principal payments under capital lease obligations (32¢) (329)
Payment of dividends (3,40 (3,199
Repurchase of common stock (2,672 —
Issuance of common stock under stock option plans 36C 84¢
Tax benefit from stock compensation realization 10¢ 1,31¢
Net cash provided from (used in) financing activits 6,85¢ (6939)
Effects of exchange rate changes 10t (439)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (4,712 (330
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 22,774 16,05¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 18,06: $ 15,72¢

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




Note A — Accounting Policies

In managemen$’ opinion, the accompanying consolidated finanstatements contain all adjustments necessary teprdairly thi
financial position as of June 27, 2014 and Decerithe2013 and the results of operations for theghmonths and first half ended June
2014 and June 28, 2013. All adjustments were afrenal and recurring nature. Certain amounts inrpréars have been reclassified to coni
to the 2014 consolidated financial statement prasien.

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting StandardsBq8FASB") issued an Accounting Standards UpdR&eenue from Contracts with
Customers , which supersedes previous revenue recognitiodaggie. The new standard requires that a compamgmee revenue when
transfers promised goods or services to customeas iamount that reflects the consideration thepamy expects to receive in exchange
those goods or services. Companies will need tomsee judgment and estimates than under the guidanoently in effect, includir
estimating the amount of variable revenue to reizegaver each identified performance obligationdidnal disclosures will be required
help users of financial statements understand dr®, amount and timing of revenue and cash flariging from contracts. The new stanc
will become effective for the Company beginninghnihe first quarter 2017 and can be adopted eitfteospectively to each prior report
period presented or as a cumulative effect adjustae of the date of adoption. The Company is atigr@valuating the impact of adopting 1
new guidance on the consolidated financial statésnen

Note B — Inventories
Inventories on the Consolidated Balance Sheetswuamenarized as follows:

June 27, Dec. 31,
(Thousands) 2014 2013
Principally average cost:
Raw materials and supplies $ 38,96( $ 39,20:
Work in process 170,51( 152,64!
Finished goods 45,32( 40,95«
Net inventories $ 254,79( % 232,80!

The December 31, 2013 balance reflects a recleasdn of $19.4 milliorfrom prepaid assets to inventory. The Company detexd i
was more appropriate to reflect the fair marketugahdjustment related to certain of its preciousammventory as inventory. T
reclassification did not impact previously reportetial current assets or total assets in the acaagipg consolidated balance sheets
income in the consolidated statements of inconmeebrcash provided by operating activities in thesabidated statements of cash flows.
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Note C — Pensions and Other Post-employment Benefit

The following is a summary of the second quarte st half 2014 and 2013 net periodic benefittdosthe domestic pension plans
(which include the defined benefit plan and thepdaimental retirement plans) and the domestic eetinedical plan.

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
Second Quarter Ended Second Quarter Ended

(Thousands) June 27,2014 June 28, 2013 June 27,2014 June 28, 2013
Components of net periodic benefit cost
Service cost $ 193¢ $ 2,35¢ $ 34 $ 7€
Interest cost 2,44¢ 2,35¢ 16¢ 311
Expected return on plan assets (3,019 (2,996 — —
Amortization of prior service cost (benefit) (209) (8€) (3749 29
Amortization of net loss 1,27¢ 1,93 — —
Net periodic benefit cost (benefit) $ 2537 % 3,56( $ a7y $ 41¢€

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

First Half Ended First Half Ended
(Thousands) June 27,2014 June 28, 2013 June 27,2014 June 28, 2013
Components of net periodic benefit cost
Service cost $ 3,87 % 4,711 $ 68 $ 152
Interest cost 4,88¢ 4,70 337 622
Expected return on plan assets (6,02%) (5,999 — —
Amortization of prior service cost (benefit) (21¢) (70 (749 58
Amortization of net loss 2,55( 3,86¢ — —
Net periodic benefit cost $ 5067 $ 7,121 % (349 $ 832

The Company made contributions to the domestimddfbenefit pension plan of $11.8 million in thestfihalf of 2014.

The Company has notified participants of changeshéo domestic retiree medical plan, including cliagghe benefit formula ft
participants covered by the plan. The revised befemula is designed to lower costs for the Compand the majority of plan participar
As a result of this change, the plan liability tie Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet was rediyc®ti4.0 millionin the first quarter 201
with the offset increasing other comprehensive inepa component of shareholders' equity. The ifghieduction will be recognized
earnings over the average remaining service lifganficipants.

Note D — Contingencies

Materion Brush Inc., one of the Compasiyvholly owned subsidiaries, is a defendant frametito time in legal proceedings where
plaintiffs allege they have contracted chronic Hemn disease (CBD) or related ailments as a resuitxposure to beryllium. The Comp:
will record a reserve for CBD or other litigatiorhen a loss from either settlement or verdict isoplde and estimable. Claims filed by third
party plaintiffs where the alleged exposure ocalipgor to December 31, 2007 may be covered byramsie subject to an annual deductibl
$1.0 million . Reserves are recorded for assen&iths only and defense costs are expensed as écurwoCBD cases, which were filed
prior periods, were outstanding as of the end efsacond quarter 2014. A loss reserve of $0.2anilivas recorded for these twases as of tl
end of the second quarter 2014. No other CBD oases filed or dismissed during the first half 0fl20

The Company has an active environmental compligmmogram and records reserves for the probable afoistentified environment
remediation projects. The reserves are establibhedd upon analyses conducted by the Compamgineers and outside consultants an
adjusted from time to time based upon ongoing s8jdhe difference between actual and estimatets eosl other factors. The reserves
also be affected by rulings and negotiations wéthutatory agencies. The undiscounted
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reserve balance was $4.8 million at June 27, 2@it4$4.8 millionat December 31, 2013. Environmental projects terfoetlong term and t
final actual remediation costs may differ from #reounts currently recorded.

Early in the second quarter 2014, the Company esheim agreement with its insurance carrier toeséié outstanding precious mu

theft claim for $6.8 million The cash was received and the benefit of thitegstnt was recorded in the Company's financiaéstants in th
second quarter 2014 in other-net in the consolitlstatements of income.

Note E — Segment Reporting

Advanced
Material Performance Beryllium and Technical All
(Thousands) Technologies Alloys Composites Materials Subtotal Other Total
Second Quarter 2014
Sales to external customers g 179,11 $ 76,74 $ 16,59¢ $ 1551 $ 287,96! $ — 8 287,96!
Intersegment sales 57¢ 487 162 9¢ 1,32¢ — 1,32¢
Operating profit (loss) 11,49 5,22¢ (1,819 95¢ 15,87: (1,309 14,56¢
Second Quarter 2013
Sales to external customers $ 196,01: $ 7433 § 16,187 $ 19,60¢ $ 306,14: $ — 3 306,14
Intersegment sales 771 611 63 214 1,66¢ — 1,66¢
Operating profit (loss) (2,286) 6,89¢ 822 2,38¢ 7,82: (1,267 6,561
First Half 2014
Sales to external customers g 34230¢ $ 143,42t $ 32,098 % 29,06: % 546,89 % — $  546,8%
Intersegment sales 1,07¢ 1,002 31¢C 21¢ 2,607 — 2,607
Operating profit (loss) 19,09¢ 8,77¢ (710 1,141 28,30¢ (2,687 25,62:
Assets 314,12! 273,07¢ 145,43: 22,18¢ 754,82 36,03 790,85:
First Half 2013
Sales to external customers ¢ 389,86 $ 148,85 % 28,50¢ $ 38,08 $ 605,31( $ — $ 60531
Intersegment sales 1,52t 1,041 133 444 3,14: — 3,14:
Operating profit (loss) 1,06¢ 14,13¢ (474 3,82¢ 18,55( (2,467 16,08:
Assets 318,91 266,56. 141,50¢ 24,53( 751,51° 47,22¢ 798,74:

Note F — Stock-based Compensation Expense

Stock-based compensation expense was $1.6 mitlithel second quarter 2014 and $1.5 milliothe second quarter 2013. For the
half of the year, stock-based compensation expenase$3.0 million in 2014 and $2.7 million in 2013.

The Company granted approximately 144,8@ftk appreciation rights (SARS) to certain empésyim the second quarter 2014 at a s
price of $33.29 per share. The fair value of theRSAwhich was determined on the grant date usiBtpek-Scholes model, was $12.48i
share and will be amortized over the vesting peoioithiree years . The SARs expire in seven year the date of the grant.

The Company granted approximately 38,000 sharesstficted stock units to certain employees instheond quarter 2014 at a weightec
average fair value of $33.2%r share. The fair value was determined usingli®ng price of the Company's common stock ongttaait dat
and will be amortized over the vesting period oéthyears The holders of the restricted stock units wilfféit their shares if their employm:e
is terminated prior to the end of the vesting perio

The Company granted approximately 25,000 performedased restricted stock units to certain employeédheé first quarter 2014 a
fair value of $26.02 per share. The fair value Ww#l expensed over the vesting period of three yeBng final share payout to the employ
will be based upon the Company’s total return tareholders over the vesting period relative to er ggoups performance over the sa
period.

The Company received $0.4 million for the exera$eapproximately 21,000 options during the firstftaf 2014 and $0.8 milliorfor the
exercise of approximately 56,000 options duringfitet half of 2013. Exercises of stock appreciati@hts totaled approximately 39,000the
first half of 2014 and 57,000 in the first half2913.




Note G — Other-net
Other-net income (expense) for the second quantkfiest half of 2014 and 2013 is summarized ak¥os:

Second Quarter Ended First Half Ended
June 27, June 28, June 27, June 28,

(Thousands) 2014 2013 2014 2013

Foreign currency exchange/translation (loss) gain $ 423 $ 42€ $ 475 $ 1,14¢
Amortization of intangible assets (1,310 (1,329 (2,439 (2,642
Metal consignment fees (1,84¢) (1,709 (3,712 (3,51¢)
Net gain (loss) on disposal of fixed assets (27 — 2,61(C —
Recovery from insurance 6,75( — 6,75( —
Other items (249 (35)) (207) (41€)
Total $ 2,898 % (2,950 $ 2,53 % (5,43))

Note H — Income Taxes

The tax expense of $3.9 million in the second aqua?014 was calculated by applying a rate of 28&&fdinst income before incol
taxes, while the tax expense of $1.6 million in #eeond quarter 2013 was calculated by applyinate of 27.7%against the income befc
income taxes in that period.

In the first half of 2014, the tax expense of $6ilion was calculated using an effective tax rat@8.7% , while the tax expense%8.t
million in the first half of 2013 was calculatedngp an effective tax rate of 24.2% .

The differences between the statutory and effeatates in the second quarter and first half of bgthrs was due to the impact
percentage depletion, the production deductiorgidor source income and deductions, executive cosgbem, state and local taxes and ¢
factors. The research and experimentation creslit ptovided a benefit in the second quarter amstl Hialf of 2013, but there was no tax bel
recorded in the first half of 2014 as the U.S. Gesg has not extended the credit for 2014.

Discrete tax benefits totaling $0.6 millievere recorded in the first half of 2013, primarfdy adjustments for the prior year research
experimentation credit. The net discrete items vimraaterial in the first half of 2014.

Note | — Depreciation and Amortization

The Company received $63.5 millidrom the U.S. Department of Defense (DoD) in presigeriods for reimbursement of the Dc
share of the cost of capital equipment acquirethbyCompany under a Title Il contract. The Compeagorded the cost of the equipmer
property, plant and equipment and the reimbursesn&@htunearned income, a liability on the Consaidi@alance Sheets. The equipment
placed in service during the third quarter 2012 @sdull cost is being depreciated in accordandth Wompany policy. The unearned incc
liability is being reduced ratably with the depedmn expense recorded over the life of the equiime

In the first half of 2014, the depreciation expensethe equipment subject to reimbursement was $@ln . Unearned income w
reduced by $2.3 million accordingly, with the offset recorded as a créglitost of sales. Depreciation, depletion and éiraiion expense (
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows is shatofithe reduction in unearned income.

Amortization of mine development costs are inifiaktcorded in inventory and subsequently recordéal Gost of sales in the period t
the inventory is sold. Depreciation, depletion ardortization depicted on the Consolidated Statemér@ash Flows, including the mi
development costs amortized into inventory, totah2.1 million in the first half of 2014 and $18niillion in the first half of 201:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization expenserded in operating profit in the Consolidated &tatnt of Income totaled $19.9 milliam
the first half of 2014 and $19.5 million in thesfihalf of 2013.




Note J — Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company measures and records financial institenat their fair values. A fair value hierarchy used for those instrume
measured at fair value that distinguishes betwessuraptions based on market data (observable inpnts)the Compang’ assumptior
(unobservable inputs). The hierarchy consists i@ethevels:

Level 1 — Quoted market prices in active marketddentical assets and liabilities;
Level 2 — Inputs other than Level 1 inputs thateitber directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 —Unobservable inputs developed using estimates ssuhgptions developed by the Company, which reftexde that a mark
participant would use.

The following table summarizes the financial instents measured at fair value in the Consolidatddrigae Sheets as of June 27, 2014

Fair Value Measurements
Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
(Thousands) Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial Assets
Directors’ deferred compensation investments $ 328 $ 328 % — % —
Foreign currency forward contracts 36 — 36 —
Total $ 364 $ 328 % 36 $ —
Financial Liabilities
Directors’ deferred compensation liability $ 326 $ 328 % — 3 —
Foreign currency forward contracts 5 — 5 —
Total $ 33 % 328 % 5 % —

The Company uses a market approach to value tle¢samsd liabilities for outstanding derivative gasts in the table above. Outstanc
contracts are valued through models that utilizeketaobservable inputs including both spot and fowvprices for the same underly
currencies and metals. The carrying values of theravorking capital items and debt on the Consitéid Balance Sheets approximate thei
values as of June 27, 2014.

Note K — Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activity

The Company uses derivative contracts to hedgéopesrof its foreign currency and precious metalosypes. The objectives for us
derivatives in these areas are as follows:

Foreign Currency . The Company sells products to overseas custoinettseir local currencies, primarily the euro aneny The
Company uses foreign currency derivatives, mainlyvard contracts and options, to hedge these pat&id sales transactions.
purpose of the hedge program is to protect ag#iesteduction in dollar value of the foreign cugsales from adverse exchange
movements. Should the dollar strengthen signifigarthe decrease in the translated value of theidor currency sales should
partially offset by gains on the hedge contractsp&nding upon the methods used, the hedge comtiactimit the benefits from
weakening U.S. dollar.

The use of forward contracts locks in a firm ratel &liminates any downside from an adverse rateemewt as well as any ben
from a favorable rate movement. The Company maw fiime to time choose to hedge with options omaléan of options known a:
collar. These hedging techniques can limit or efaié the downside risk but can allow for some bofathe benefit from a favorat
rate movement to be realized. Unlike a forward @it a premium is paid for an option; collars, ethare a combination of a put ¢
call option, may have a net premium but they carstbgctured to be cash neutral. The Company witharily hedge with forwar
contracts due to the relationship between the catlhy and the level of risk.
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The use of foreign currency derivative contractgaserned by policies approved by the Audit Comeeitbf the Board of Directors.
team consisting of senior financial managers residve estimated exposure levels, as defined bydisgdfprecasts and other intel
data, and determines the timing, amounts and im&nts to use to hedge that exposure within theimesof the policy. Managemt
analyzes the effective hedged rates and the aandhlprojected gains and losses on the hedgingaithoss against the progr.
objectives, targeted rates and levels of risk assliHedge contracts are typically layered in dediint times for a specified expos
period in order to minimize the impact of rate mments.

Precious Metals . The Company maintains the majority of its presiouetal production requirements on consignmentraerotc
reduce the working capital investment and the exyEo$o metal price movements. When a precious npetaluct is fabricated a
ready for shipment to the customer, the metal islpased out of consignment at the current markeé gnd that price forms the be
for the price to be charged to the customer.

In certain circumstances, a customer may wanttabbsh the price for the precious metal when #lesorder is placed rather tha
the time of the shipment. Setting the selling pate different date than when the material wowdobrchased potentially creates
exposure to movements in the market price of thaim&herefore, in these limited situations, them(any may elect to enter inti
forward contract to purchase a stated quantityretipus metal at a fixed price on a specified datéhe future. The price in t
forward contract serves as the basis for the picbe charged to the customer. By so doing, thiingednd purchase prices
matched and the Company’s market price exposusslisced.

The Company refines precious metahtaining materials for its customers and typicalill purchase the refined metal from
customer at current market prices. In limited ainstances, the customer may want to fix the prideetpaid at the time of the ordel
opposed to when the material is refined. The custamay also want to fix the price to be paid forumber of orders over a perioc
time. The Company may then enter into a hedge aohteither a forward contract or a swap, to fix giiice for the estimated quan
of refined metal to be purchased thereby redudiegekposure to adverse movements in the market pfithe metal.

The Company will only enter into a derivative cautrif there is an underlying identified exposuBantracts are typically held ur
maturity. The Company does not engage in derivatiading activities and does not use derivativassfieculative purposes. The Comg
only uses currency hedge contracts that are dembedrin the same currency as the underlying exposnd precious metal hedge contr
denominated in the same metal as the underlyingsexp.

All derivatives are recorded on the balance sheétar fair values. If the derivative is desigrehtend effective as a cash flow hec
changes in the fair value of the derivative aregeized in other comprehensive income (OCI) uh#l hedged item is recognized in earni
The ineffective portion of a derivativefair value, if any, is recognized in earnings iethately. If a derivative is not a hedge, changethé
fair value are adjusted through income. The falues of the outstanding derivatives are recordedhenbalance sheet as assets (i
derivatives are in a gain position) or liabilitiésthe derivatives are in a loss position). Thi falues will also be classified as short terr
long term depending upon their maturity dates.

The outstanding foreign currency forward contrdmetd a notional value of $35.7 millias of June 27, 2014. All of these contracts
designated and effective as cash flow hedges. €h&in value of the outstanding contracts was teas $0.1 million with the asset record
in prepaid expenses and the liability recordedtirenliabilities and accrued items on the ConsééidaBalance Sheets as of July 27, 2014.

There was no ineffectiveness associated with th&racts outstanding at July 27, 2014 andnaffectiveness expense was recorded i
second quarter of first half of 2014 or 2013.

Changes in the fair value of outstanding cash thadges recorded in OCI totaled $31,000 at Jun@@I4 and $0.6 milliorat June 2¢
2013. The Company expects to relieve substantibélyentire balance in OCI as of June 27, 2014 donre on the Consolidated Statemen
Income during the twelveionth period beginning June 28, 2014. See Note théoConsolidated Financial Statements for addididdCl
details.

Note L — Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Changes in the components of accumulated other @mapsive income, including the amounts reclaskidiet, for the second quat
and first half of 2014 and 2013 are as follows:
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Gains and Losses
On Cash Flow Hedges

Pension and Post Foreign

Foreign Precious Employment Currency
(Thousands) Currency Metals Total Benefits Translation Total
Accumulated other comprehensive income,
of March 28, 2014
Gross $ (96) $ — 3 (96) $ (62,059 $ 87¢ $ (61,279
Deferred tax (benefit) (1,437) — (1,437 (9,939 — (11,369
Net $ 1,341 % — 3 1,341 % (52,12¢) $ 87¢ $ (49,909
Second quarter 2014 activity:
Other comprehensive income (loss) before
reclassifications 84 — 84 — 12¢ 21C
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income 43 — 43 461 — 504
Net current period other comprehensive incc
(loss) before tax 127 — 127 461 12¢ 714
Deferred taxes on current period activity 47 — 47 (82) — (39
Net current period other comprehensive incc
(loss) after tax 80 — 8C 542 12¢€ 74¢
Accumulated other comprehensive income,
of June 27, 2014
Gross 31 — 31 (61,597 1,00z (60,56¢)
Deferred tax (benefit) (2,390 — (1,390 (20,019 — (11,409
Net $ 1,421 $ — ¢ 1,421 % (51,589 $ 1,00z $ (49,16)
Accumulated other comprehensive income, as
of March 29, 2013
Gross $ 96 $ — 3 96¢ $ (125,66) $ 1,32: $ (123,37)
Deferred tax (benefit) (1,069 — (1,069 (32,749 — (33,819
Net 2,03 — 2,03 (92,91) 1,32 (89,56))
Second quarter 2013 activity :
Other comprehensive income (loss) before
reclassifications 13 — 13 — (62€) (6139)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated othe
comprehensive income (42¢) 23 (40%) 1,87 — 1,472
Net current period other comprehensive income
(loss) before tax (41%) 23 (392 1,87 (62€) 85¢
Deferred taxes on current period activity (14%) — (145) 657 — 51z
Net current period other comprehensive income
(loss) after tax (270 23 (247) 1,22( (62€) 347

Accumulated other comprehensive income, as
of June 28, 2013
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Gross 554 23 577 (123,789 697 (122,519
Deferred tax (benefit) (1,209 1 (1,20¢) (32,09 — (33,299
Net $ 1,765 $ 22 1,785 $ (91,69) $ 697 $ (89,219
Gains and Losses
On Cash Flow Hedges
Pension and
Post Foreign
Foreign Employment Currency
(Thousands) Currency Precious Metals Total Benefits Translation Total
Accumulated other comprehensive incor
as of December 31, 2013
Gross $ 87 % (19) $ (10e) $ (77,30) $ 287 $ (77,120
Deferred tax (benefit) (1,439 @) (1,440 (15,797 — (17,237
Net $ 1,34¢ % 12) $ 1332 $ (61,509 $ 287 % (59,889
First half 2014 activity:
Other comprehensive income (loss) befc
reclassifications $ B $ — 3 B8 $ 14,03 $ 715 $ 14,74:
Amounts reclassified from accumulated
other comprehensive income $ 12¢ $ 19 3 148 % 1,67C $ — % 1,81
Net current period other comprehensive
income (loss) before tax 11€ 19 % 137 15,70¢ 715 $ 16,55¢
Deferred taxes on current period activity 43 7 3% 50 5,77¢ — 3 5,82¢
Net current period other comprehensive
income (loss) after tax 75 12 % 87 9,92¢ 715 $ 10,727
Accumulated other comprehensive incor
as of June 27, 2014
Gross $ 31 % — 31 $ (6159) $ 1,00z $ (60,569
Deferred tax (benefit) (2,390 — % (1,390 (10,019 — (112,409
Net $ 1,421 — % 1421 $ (51589 $ 1,002 $ (49,16))
Accumulated other comprehensive income,
as of December 31, 2012
Gross $ 25 % 97 $ 35C $ (127,54) $ 4,077 $ (123,119
Deferred tax (benefit) $ (1,319 $ 34 % (1,280 $ (33,40H $ — 3 (34,68%)
Net $ 1567 $ 63 9 1,63C $ (94,130 $ 4,071 $ (88,429
First half 2013 activity
Other comprehensive income (loss) before
reclassifications 87z ¢ 23 % 89t % — % (3,380 $ (2,48¢)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated
other comprehensive income $ (571) $ 97 $ (666) $ 3,75 % — % 3,08t
Net current period other comprehensive
income (loss) before tax $ 301 % (74) $ 227 % 3,75: % (3,380 $ 60C
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Deferred taxes on current period activity $ 105 $ (33 ¢ 72 % 1,31 % —  $ 1,38¢
Net current period other comprehensive
income (loss) after tax $ 19¢ $ (41) $ 158§ 2,43¢ % (3,380 $ (78€)

Accumulated other comprehensive income,
as of June 28, 2013

Gross 554 23 $ 577 (123,78 697 $ (122,51,
Deferred tax (benefit) (1,209 1 % (1,20¢) (32,09 — 3 (33,299
Net $ 1,762 $ 22 % 1,78 $ (91,69) $ 697 $ (89,21H

Reclassifications from accumulated other compreakienacome of gains and losses on foreign currarash flow hedges are recorde
othernet on the Consolidated Statements of Income whéegains and losses on precious metal cash fladgdseare recorded in cost of s
on the Consolidated Statements of Income. See IKltbtehe Consolidated Financial Statements for tholthl details on cash flow hedges.

Reclassifications from accumulated other comprelengicome for pension and post employment bendits included in tt

computation of the net periodic pension and pospleyment benefit expense. See Note C to the Cailetelil Financial Statements
additional details on pension and post employmepeeses.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial @dition and Results of Operations

OVERVIEW

We are an integrated producer of higgrformance advanced engineered materials usedamiety of electrical, electronic, thermal :
structural applications. Our products are sold intonerous markets, including consumer electrorifudystrial components, commert
aerospace, defense, science, energy, medical, ativenelectronics, telecommunications infrastruetand appliance.

Second quarter 2014 sales of $288.0 million werel6#er than sales in the second quarter 2013. Vadfided sales, a ndBAAP
measure that removes the impact of gassugh metals, totaled $159.6 million in the setgoarter 2014, a 5% improvement over the se
quarter 2013. The growth in valaglded sales was largely in the consumer electr@amdsmedical markets offset in part by softnesthé
defense and automotive electronics markets.

Gross margin was $49.8 million in the second qu&®d4 compared to $46.0 million in the second gua2013. The margin growth w
due to the higher valuadded sales, improvements in precious metal rgfiaperations and other factors offset in part byeaker product m
and higher material costs in portions of our bussne

We reached an agreement with our insurance camni¢he precious metal theft claim that resulted $6.8 million benefit in the secc
quarter 2014, which is included in Other-net on@omsolidated Statement of Income.

Operating profit was $14.6 million in the seconddar 2014, an increase of $8.0 million over therapng profit of $6.6 million in tF
second quarter 2013. Earnings per share were $0thé second quarter 2014 compared to $0.20 ise¢bend quarter 2013.

We increased the quarterly dividend to $0.085 paresand paid $1.8 million to shareholders in #aad quarter 2014.

Outstanding debt totaled $86.0 million as of thd ehthe second quarter 2014, a $6.9 million redactrom the end of the first quar
2014.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Second Quarter Ended First Half Ended
Jun. 27, Jun. 28, Jun. 27, Jun. 28,

(Millions, except per share data) 2014 2013 2014 2013

Sales $ 288.C % 306.1 $ 546.¢ $ 605.:
Value-added sales 159.¢ 152.t 304.5 303.¢
Operating profit 14.¢ 6.€ 25.€ 16.1
Income before income taxes 13.¢ 5.7 24.: 14.4
Net income 10.C 4.2 17.5 10.¢
Diluted earnings per share $ 047 $ 0.2 $ 08z $ 0.52

Salesof $288.0 million in the second quarter 2014 wet8.$ million, or 6%, lower than sales of $306.1limi in the second quar
2013. Sales totaled $546.9 million in the firstflwdl2014, a 10% decline from sales of $605.3 willin the first half of 2013.

The prices of key raw materials, including goldyesi and copper, were lower in the second quam®@r2and first half of 2014 than
respective periods in 2013 and the lower ghssugh metal prices reduced sales in the secoadar2014 by an estimated $8.1 million an
an estimated $33.7 million in the first half of 20The comparison of sales between periods wasafflected by changes in foreign curre
translation rates, a change in the amount of custemapplied precious metals and other factors.

Domestic sales declinegpproximately 8% in the second quarter 2014 froensicond quarter 2013 and 12% in the first haf0df4 fron
the first half of 2013. International sales were [b¥er in the second quarter 2014 than the secaoader
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2013 and down approximately 5% in the first hal6fL4 from the first half of 2013. European safeshie first half of 2014 were 13% lov
than the first half of 2013 primarily due to a deelin precious metal sales. Asian sales grew 4%herfirst half of 2014 over the first half
2013.

The cost of gold, silver, platinum, palladium amapper are typically passed through to customerstlaae:fore movements in the pri
of these metals will affect sales but may not hayoportionate impact on margins. Internally, wenage our business on a vahdded sale
basis. Value-added sales is a non-GAAP measuredédhicts the cost of these p#sssugh metals from sales and removes the pot
distortion caused by differences in metal valudd.sdalue-added sales of $159.6 million in the setquarter 2014 improved 5% over value
added sales of $152.5 million in the second qu&®d:3. Valueadded sales were $304.5 million in the first h&lR0614 compared to $30:
million in the first half of 2013. A reconciliatioof sales to valuadded sales is provided in a later section oflasagement's Discussion &
Analysis.

Beginning in the first quarter 2014, we revised walueadded sales by market reporting, segregating tfense and science market i
two separate markets and reclassifying nuclear eakdipplications from the science market to the ineédnarket. We also segregated
industrial components and commercial aerospace ehanko two separate markets. Prigar data has been revised to allow for pr
comparisons.

The majority of the growth in value-added salethin second quarter 2014 was due to improvememnalire-added sales to the consul
electronics market. Value-added sales to the coas@hectronics market, our largest market accognfiim 28% of valueadded sales in t
second quarter 2014, grew 15% in the second qu2btet over the second quarter 2013 and 10% inittstehfalf of 2014 over the first half
2013. Valueadded sales to the medical market also improvexnlyigg 14% in the second quarter 2014 and 2% irfiteehalf of 2014 over tt
comparable periods of 2013. The second quarter 88dth was due to higher shipments for blood ghectest strip, nuclear medical anday-
window applications. Improved valsded sales to the industrial components, sciemd@ppliance markets contributed to the growtlotal
value-added sales in the second quarter 2014 &s wel

Offsetting a portion of the value-added sales ghoinam these markets was a decline in valdded sales to the defense market of 2¢
the second quarter 2014 and 26% in the first hla#0d4 from the respective periods in 2013. Thislide was due to a combination of
ongoing impact of government spending cutbacksthadiming of program releases. Valadded sales to the automotive electronics m
also declined 26% in the second quarter 2014 af@iRlthe first half of 2014 from the fairly highipment levels in the same periods in 2(
Value-added sales to the energy market softened in tendequarter 2014 from the second quarter 2013weu¢ higher in the first half
2014 than the first half of 2013 due to a strorfgst quarter 2014.

Gross marginwas $49.8 million, or 17% of sales, in the secondrtgr 2014 versus $46.0 million, or 15% of saileshe second quar
2013. Gross margin in the first half of 2014 wa$.89million, or 17% of sales, compared to $94.3iam| or 16% of sales, in the first half
2013. Gross margin as a percent of vaddded sales was 31% in the second quarter 2018G#8din the second quarter 2013. Gross mi
was 31% of value-added sales in the first half@f£and 2013.

The higher value&dded sales provided a benefit to gross margitiseirsecond quarter 2014. The change in productwaiunfavorabl
in the second quarter 2014 as compared to the depaarter 2013 largely due to mix shifts within ®erformance Alloys and Beryllium &
Composites businesses. The change in product mexfavarable for the first half of 2014 as compat@dthe first half of 2013 due to a strc
mix in the first quarter 2014 resulting in partrfiovarious high margin shipments for defense anehse applications.

Improved yields and manufacturing efficiencies wesrade within the precious metal refining operatjamisich provided a margin bene
in the first half of 2014. Operating costs and inmaterial costs were higher at the EImore, Ohailifg in the second quarter 2014. T
facility supports both the Performance Alloys anehBlium and Composites businesses. Manufacturiegrtead costs in the second qui
2014 were unchanged from the second quarter 20d 3%nhigher in the first half of 2014 than the ffinalf of 2013. Gross margin in the f
half of 2014 was adversely impacted by the sevexaher in the first quarter 2014, which causedpostiuction time and other inefficiencie:
several of our facilities..

The facility consolidation and product line ratitimation program that was initiated in the fourtlragter 2012 was substantially comple
in the fourth quarter 2013, although we spent $iBion in the first quarter 2014 for employee maiens, cleanip costs and oth
miscellaneous items (with $0.1 million recordectost of sales and $0.5 million recorded againsingelgeneral and administrative (SG&
expenses). Facility closure costs totaled $0.6ianilin the first half of 2013, all of which was exqsed in the first quarter 2013. Savings 1
this program in the second quarter 2014 relativéh®o second quarter 2013 totaled an estimated ®8libn, with $2.1 million related t
reduced cost of sales and $1.3 million relatec:tiuced SG&A
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expenses. For the first half of 2014, the estimatest savings were $6.6 million, with $3.9 millioelated to reduced cost of sales and
million related to reduced SG&A expenses.

SG&A expensesvere $34.7 million in the second quarter 2014 camghdo $33.3 million in the second quarter 2013&8Gexpense
were $65.9 million in the first half of 2014, agt decrease from the expense total of $66.1 milliiothe first half of 2013. SG&A expen:
were 12% of sales in the first half of 2014 and 1dfPéales in the first half of 2013. SG&A expensase 22% of valuadded sales in both 1
first half of 2014 and the first half of 2013.

Retirement costs under the domestic defined bepefision plan and the domestic retiree medical plare $1.6 million lower in tt
second quarter 2014 than the second quarter 201322 million in the first half of 2014 than thiest half of 2013 due to changes in
discount rates, actuarial differences, changebdmtan design and other factors. The lower experaserecorded mainly in SG&A expen
and cost of sales.

The incentive compensation expense under basked plans was $2.6 million higher in the secamattgr 2014 than the second quz
2013 and $2.6 million higher in the first half @1 than the first half of 2013. The increase wassed by differences in the projected lev:
annual profit relative to the plans' targets integear and other factors.

Stock-based compensation expense totaled $1.6mili the second quarter 2014 and $1.5 millionhe $econd quarter 2013. Stock
based compensation expense in the first half o#20ds $3.0 million compared to $2.7 million in test half of 2013. Movements in stock-
based compensation between periods may be caugtiffdrgnces in the number of unvested grantsfalieszalue of the grants and other itel

Selling and marketing expenses increased in thenskequarter and first half of 2014 in portions oir dusiness in order to support
market development plans.

Various corporate costs were higher in the firdf B@14 than the first half of 2013, including lédpartially as a result of the co
associated with the precious metal insurance claimd)health and safety (driven by a large one-study).

Research and development (R&D) expensese $3.4 million in the second quarter 2014 coragado $3.2 million in the second qua
2013 and $6.2 million in the first half of 2014 cpaned to $6.7 million in the first half of 2013. R&expenses were approximately 1% of <
in the first half of 2014 and 2013. The changexXpense levels between periods was primarily dudifferences in project work, the timing
activities and changes in manpower.

Other-netwas income of $2.9 million in the second quartetf2@nd $2.5 million in the first half of 2014. 923, othemet was a
expense of $3.0 million in the second quarter an#i504 million in the first half of the year. Theain causes for the change between pe
were a favorable insurance settlement in the seqoader 2014 and a gain on the sale of used eauipin the first quarter 2014 offset in |
by higher currency exchange and translation lossbeth quarters of 2014.

During the second quarter 2014, we reached a fal@egreement with our insurance provider thatltedun the payment of $6.8 millis
to us in satisfaction of our theft claim associatéth the precious metal inventory loss at our Ajbarque, New Mexico facility in the fou
quarter 2012. The agreement with the insurancéecaiso allows us to retain any future recovefiem the responsible parties.

As part of the plant consolidation program, we amdd equipment with little future value to us &$2.6 million gain in the first quar
2014.

These benefits were partially offset by higher foegign currency exchange and translation lossek0d million in the second quar
2014 and $1.6 million in the first half of 2014 ththe respective periods of 2013 as a result oihtbeement in the value of the U.S. dc
versus certain other currencies and their impadtansactions and balances and in relation tottilegrices in currency hedge contracts.

Othernet expense also includes metal consignment fesstization expense, bad debt expense, cash ditcand other items. See N
G to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Operating profitwas $14.6 million in the second quarter 2014, aprawvement of $8.0 million over the operating prafit$6.6 million ir
the second quarter 2013. The improvement in pwait due to the increased margin (which resultem fitee higher valuadded sales and otl
factors), savings from the plant consolidation paog, lower retirement plan costs, the favorableiiasce settlement and other factors, offs
part by an increase in incentive compensationgecuyr exchange and
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translation losses and other items. Operating towads 5% of sales in the second quarter 2014 an@f28ales in the second quarter 2013
9% of value-added sales in the first half of 20tid 4% of value-added sales in the first half of 201

Operating profit of $25.6 million (5% of sales)the first half of 2014 was 59% higher than opegnofit of $16.1 million (3% of sale
in the first half of 2013. Operating profit was 8¥ovalue-added sales in the first half of 2014 &84l of valueadded sales in the first half
2013.

Interest expense - navas $0.7 million in the second quarter 2014, doligh#y from the expense of $0.8 million in the sad quarte
2013. Interest expenset was $1.4 million in the first half of 2014 coanpd to $1.6 million in the first half of 2013. Thewer net intere:
expense was mainly due to a decrease in the avetdsganding debt level.

Income before income taxeandincome tax expenstor the second quarter and first half of 2014 a@ti®were as follows:

Second Quarter Ended First Half Ended

Jun. 27, Jun. 28, Jun. 27, Jun. 28,
(Dollars in millions) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Income before income taxes $ 13¢ $ 57 $ 24: $ 144
Income tax expense 3.¢ 1.€ 7.C 3.t
Effective tax rate 28.2% 27.1% 28.71% 24.2%

The effects of percentage depletion, the produalestuction, foreign source income and creditsesdaatl local taxes and other items v
major factors for the difference between the effecand statutory rates in the second quarter iasichialf of 2014 and 2013.

The tax expense for the first half of 2013 includedet discrete tax benefit of $0.6 million recatde the first quarter 2013 that prima
represented the estimated full value of the rebeanc experimentation credit for 2012 as the U@&hgtess did not extend the credit for 2
and 2013 until January 2013. Congress has not@atetie credit for 2014 and, therefore, no behefit been recorded in the current year.

Net incomewas $10.0 million (or $0.47 per share, diluted}he second quarter 2014 compared to $4.2 million$®20 per shar
diluted) in the second quarter 2013. Net income $4&3 million (or $0.82 per share, diluted) in ffret half of 2014 versus $10.9 million |
$0.52 per share, diluted) in the first half of 2013

Segment Results

Results by segment are depicted in Note E to thes@mlated Financial Statements. The All Other gwoiuin the segment reporti
includes our parent company expenses, other cdgoharges and the operating results of Materioni&ss Inc., a wholly owned subsidi
that provides administrative and financial oversiggrvices to our other businesses on a cost-pisis.b

The operating loss within All Other in the seconder 2014 was unchanged from the second quaiie 2nd $0.2 million higher in t
first half of 2014 than the first half of 2013. lmeed costs, including incentive compensation,caparate were higher in the first half of 2C

but the increase was largely offset by an incréastarges out to the business units.

Advanced Material Technologies

Second Quarter Ended First Half Ended

Jun. 27, Jun. 28, Jun. 27, Jun. 28,
(Millions) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Sales $ 1791 $ 196.( $ 342 $ 389«
Value-added sales 69.¢ 65.2 135.¢ 133.¢
Operating profit 11 (2.3 19.1 1.1

Advanced Material Technologiemanufactures precious, n@necious and specialty metal products, includingovadeposition targe:
frame lid assemblies, clad and precious metal pmesp high temperature braze materials, uitna- wire, advanced chemicals, opt
performance coatings and microelectronic packadémse products are used in wireless, semicondugtoofonic, hybrid and oth
microelectronic applications within the consumeectionics and telecommunications infrastructure ketst Other key markets for th
products include medical, defense and scienceggremd industrial components. Advanced Materialhfetogies also has metal clear
operations and in-house refineries that allow lerteclaim
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of precious metals from internally generated onta@uers’scrap. This segment has domestic facilities in Nawk, Connecticut, Wisconsi
New Mexico, Massachusetts and Califorand international facilities in Asia and Europe.

Sales from Advanced Material Technologies were $l#@@llion in the second quarter 2014, a declin16.9 million, or 9%, from sal
of $196.0 million in the second quarter 2013. Sale$342.3 million in the first half of 2014 werd®6 million, or 12%, lower than sales
$389.9 million in the first half of 2013. Lower mathrough metal prices accounted for an estim@6€@ million of the decline in sales in
second quarter 2014 from the second quarter 20d3%ah.0 million of the decline in sales in the ffinglf of 2014 from the first half of 201
The balance of the sales decline was due to diféer®in volumes shipped and the quantity of custesapplied metal.

Value-added sales were $69.9 million in the secpmarter 2014, a 7% increase from vahdeled sales of $65.2 million in the sec
quarter 2013. Value-added sales of $135.5 milliothe first half of 2014 were $1.6 million, or 1%igher than valuedded sales of $13!
million in the first half of 2013.

Consumer electronics is Advanced Material Techrie®dargest market, accounting for approximatéyedof the segment's valaetder
sales in the first half of 2014. Valwelded sales to this market grew 16% in the secoadey 2014 over the second quarter 2013 and 1
the first half of 2014 over the first half of 201Bhe growth was primarily due to a combination wfhter shipments for semiconductor, LI
gaming systems and other applications.

Value-added sales to the medical market, primgmigcious metatoated precision polymer films, improved 18% in fezond quart
2014 over the second quarter 2013. Vaddded sales to this market were 1% higher in tis¢ fialf of 2014 than the first half of 2013. °
comparison between valaelded sales in the second quarter 2014 and thedeparter 2013 is affected by manufacturing isates ke
vendor that caused a temporary shipment delayerséitond quarter 2013. Medical market valdded sales in the second quarter 2013
the lowest quarter of that year. Valadded sales to the medical market in the secondeyu2014 also improved 9% over the first quar@t4
The medical market is this segment's second largasdtet, accounting for approximately 19% of vahdeled sales in the second quarter 2014

Value-added sales from refining and shield kit cleanipgrations improved 25% in the second quarter 264 the second quarter 2(
and 6% in the first half of 2014 from the first haf 2013. The level of valuadded sales from these operations is partiallynatfon of the
ounces in the supply chain available to be recldirttee purity levels of those ounces and the ctipsstious metal prices.

Defense valuadded sales declined approximately 33% in the skqoarter 2014 and 36% in the first half of 20leirirthe comparakb
periods in 2013. The decline was largely due toeloghipments of optics as a result of governmeending cut-backs. Valuadded sales to t
energy and telecommunications infrastructure markéto declined slightly in the second quarter farstl half of 2014 from the respecti
periods in 2013. Automotive electronics valded sales in the second quarter 2014 were unetidram the second quarter 2013 but low:
the first half of 2014 than the first half of 20d8e to weaker sales of optics in the first quazte4.

Gross margin generated by Advanced Material Teduies was $25.5 million, or 14% of sales in theoselcquarter 2014, comparec
$19.2 million, or 10% of sales, in the second qgraPD13. Gross margin grew from $44.2 million, &Pd of sales, in the first half of 2013
$49.0 million, or 14% of sales in the first half2014. Gross margin was 37% of vakided sales in the second quarter 2014 compareabt
value-added sales in the second quarter 2013. @Graggin was 36% of valuadded sales in the first half of 2014, an improvetnfieom 33% o
value-added sales in the first half of 2013.

The increased gross margin in the second quartefiest half of 2014 compared to the respectiveque of 2013 was partially due
process improvements that resulted in higher yiafd$ manufacturing efficiencies in the preciousahegfining operations at the Buffalo, N
York facility.

Gross margin also grew in the second quarter 20&4 the second quarter 2013 as a result of theehighlueadded sales. The higl
value-added sales had a minor impact on gross margiherfitst half of 2014. The change in product mixswavorable in both the secc
quarter and first half of 2014 compared to the sparéds in 2013.

The previously discussed plant consolidation savifayorably impacted this segmengjross margins and total expenses in the s
quarter and first half of 2014.

Total SG&A, R&D and othenet expenses were $14.3 million (8% of sales) énstbcond quarter 2014 compared to $21.5 milliofo(d1
sales) in the second quarter 2013 and $29.9 mi#ét of sales) in the first half of 2014 compare®43.1
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million (11% of sales) in the first half of 2013xienses were 22% of value-added sales in thehfitof 2014 and 31% of valuedded sales
the first half of 2013.

The previously discussed $6.8 million insurancélesaent had a favorable impact on this segnsenét expenses in the second qu
and first half of 2014. The total expense in thstfhalf of 2014 also included the previously dissed benefit of the $2.6 million gain on
sale of equipment as part of the plant consolidgticmgram.

Offsetting a portion of the impact of these dimee benefits was an increase in incentive compgarsaxpense in the second quarter
first half of 2014 over the respective periods 012 due to the improved profitability. Corporateuaies also were higher in the second qu
and first half of 2014 than the comparable periodthe prior year. The metal consignment fee waghty higher in the second quarter 2!
than the second quarter 2013 after being flaténfitist quarter 2014 with the first quarter 2013.

Advanced Material Technologies generated an operairofit of $11.5 million in the second quarterl20 an improvement of $1:
million over the operating loss of $2.3 million time second quarter 2013. Operating profit was $f8llion (6% of sales) in the first half
2014 compared to $1.1 million (less than 1% ofSaile the first half of 2013. Operating profit wa4% of valueadded sales in the first half
2014 and 1% of value-added sales in the first ¢fa2013.

Performance Alloys

Second Quarter Ended First Half Ended
Jun. 27, Jun. 28, Jun. 27, Jun. 28,

(Millions) 2014 2013 2014 2013

Sales $ 767 $ 745 $ 1432 $ 148«
Value-added sales 63.5 58.¢ 118.1 118.]
Operating profit 5.2 6.8 8.E 14.1

Performance Alloysnanufactures and sells three main product families:

Srip products , the largest of the product families, include tgeuge precision strip and thin diameter rod ane.wihese copper a
nickel alloys provide a combination of high conduty, high reliability and formability for use asonnectors, contacts, switches, relays
shielding. Major markets for strip products inclutinsumer electronics, telecommunications infrastine, automotive electronics, applia
and medical;

Bulk products are copper and nickdlased alloys manufactured in plate, rod, bar, am other customized forms that, depending
the application, may provide superior strengthyagion or wear resistance, thermal conductivityutaricity. Applications for bulk produc
include oil and gas drilling components, beariniggshings, welding rods, plastic mold tooling andlensea telecommunications hou:
equipment. Major markets for bulk products includelustrial components, commercial aerospace, enengy telecommunicatio
infrastructure; and,

Beryllium hydroxide is produced at our milling operations in Utah frenr bertrandite mine and purchased beryl ore. Rlurdxide it
used primarily as a raw material input for stripddulk products and, to a lesser extent, by the/lBem and Composites segment. Sale
hydroxide are also made on a limited basis.

Strip and bulk products are manufactured at faedlitn Ohio and Pennsylvania and are distributégriationally through a network
company-owned service centers and outside distriband agents.

Sales by Performance Alloys of $76.7 million in #exond quarter 2014 were 3% higher than saleg4B8%nillion in the second quar
2013, while sales of $143.4 million in the firstifhaf 2014 were 4% lower than sales of $148.9 ia finst half of 2013. Copper prices
average were lower in the second quarter andHaltof 2014 than the comparable periods of 2018 rasulted in an estimated $1.5 mill
reduction in sales in the second quarter 2014 @ndillion reduction in the first half of 2014.

The sales growth in the second quarter 2014 wagliadue to higher sales of beryllium hydroxideleSaof beryllium hydroxide totals
$3.8 million in the second quarter 2014 and $6.Boniin the first half of 2014. Beryllium hydroxé&lsales totaled $5.7 million in the first
of 2013, all of which occurred in the first quartdrthat year. The difference in sales betweerstttmnd quarter and first half of 2014 with
respective periods of 2013 was mainly due to timasgthe shipping schedule changed to a quartadisiin 2014 from a semaiknual basis
previous years
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Total volumes of strip and bulk products shippedha second quarter 2014 were 3% lower than thensequarter 2013. Volum
improved in the second quarter 2014 over the fustrter 2014, growing 13%. Total strip and bulkwoés shipped were 6% lower in the
half of 2014 than the first half of 2013, althougjipments of ToughMet® products, our non-beryllioontaining alloy manufactured in st
and bulk forms, improved 13% in the first half @12 over the first half of 2013.

Performance Alloys' value-added sales w&88.5 million in the second quarter 2014 compare$38.8 million in the second qual
2013. Value-added sales in the first half of 200.811.8.1 million were unchanged from the value-absigles in the first half of 2013.

Sales to the consumer electronics market, Perfazenafioys’ largest market, grew 29% in the second quarter 20t427% in the fir:
half of 2014 over the respective periods of 2013 Growth was partially due to increased shipmértgamera stabilization applications
tablets.

Value-added sales to the industrial components marketowepl 8% in the second quarter 2014 over the seqaader 2013, primari
due to increased shipments for foundry and firén&far applications. Valuadded sales to this market were 8% lower in ttet fialf of 201.
than the first half of 2013 partially as a resultttee lower mining activity in the first quarter P9. Valueadded sales to the energy mai
primarily bulk products for oil and gas well apgiitons, increased in the second quarter and falétoi 2014 over the same periods in 2013
to new well head applications and other factors.

Value-added sales to the automotive electronics marketapily strip products, were 26% lower in the sedajuarter 2014 than t
second quarter 2013 and 17% lower in the first b&l?014 than the first half of 2013 as a resuler€ess inventory in the supply chain
other factors. Valuadded sales to the telecommunications infrastraatarket also were lower in each of the first twarters of 2014 th:
the first two quarters of 2013 as softer vahukeled sales of undersea repeater housing compahents project funding delays more than o
the growth in connector value-added sales for 4@liegtions in Asia. Valuadded sales to the telecommunications infrastractoarke
improved in the second quarter 2014 over the dustrter 2014.

In the fourth quarter 2013, we announced a priceeise effective January 1, 2014. This announcemaygthave affected customers
purchasing patterns in the fourth quarter 2013fammtiquarter 2014.

The gross margin on Performangkoys' sales totaled $18.6 million in the secondder 2014 compared to $17.8 million in the se:
quarter 2013. Gross margin was 24% of sales in hothters and 29% of valwelded sales in the second quarter 2014 compargd%oo
value-added sales in the second quarter 2013. @Gnasgin was $34.1 million, or 24% sales, in thatfinalf of 2014 an&35.1 million, als
24% of sales, in the first half of 2013. Gross nramgas 29% of value-added sales in the first hA2@14 and 30% of valuadded sales in t
first half of 2013.

The net volume impact from the higher hydroxideueahdded sales offset in part by the lower strih laulk valueadded sales providet
small benefit to gross margin in the second qu&®d® as compared to the second quarter 2013. fdrge in product mix was unfavorabli
the second quarter and first half of 2014 relativéhe comparable periods in 2013. Operating casi® higher at the Elmore facility in 1
second quarter 2014 than the second quarter 20&3addifferences in plant performance. Manufacgiriverhead costs were lower in
second quarter and first half of 2014 than the spar®ds in 2013. The severe winter weather infitlsé quarter 2014 unfavorably impac
plant operations and reduced gross margins inittstenfalf of 2014.

Total SG&A, R&D and othenet expenses were $13.4 million (17% of saleshénsecond quarter 2014 compared to $10.9 milliéf¢
of sales) in the second quarter 2013. These expeantded $25.3 million (18% of sales) in the fimstlf of 2014 and $21.0 million (14%
sales) in the first half of 2013. They also weré&®df value-added sales in the first half of 201d &48% of valueadded sales in the first half
2013.

The differences in foreign currency exchange aaddiation gains and losses was a major cause im¢hease in expenses in the sec
quarter and first half of 2014 than the same permfd2013. R&D expenses were also higher in thersgequarter and first half of 2014, dut
an increase in project work, additional manpowests@and patent development costs. Selling and rilagkexpenses increased in the first
of 2014 due to additions to manpower. Corporateggsawere also higher in each of the first two tgrarof 2014 than the first two quarter.
2013.

Performance Alloys generated an operating prof#® million in the second quarter 2014 compace$i&.9 million in the second quai
2013. Operating profit was $8.8 million in the fifglf of 2014, down $5.3 million from the operatiprofit of $14.1 million in the first half «
2013. Operating profit was 6% of sales in the fialf 2014 and the 9% of sales in the first
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half of 2013. Operating profit was also 7% of vahdsled sales in the first half of 2014 and 12%adfig-added sales in the first half of 2013.

Beryllium and Composites

Second Quarter Ended First Half Ended
Jun. 27, Jun. 28, Jun. 27, Jun. 28,

(Millions) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Sales $ 16€ $ 16z $ 321 $ 28E
Operating profit (loss) (1.9 0.8 (0.7) (0.5

Beryllium and Compositeamanufactures berylliurbased metals and metal matrix composites in rodetsHoil and a variety
customized forms. These materials are used inegifns that require high stiffness and/or low dtgrend they tend to be premiupriced du
to their unique combination of properties. The asitjon of Aerospace Metal Composites Limited (AMi@)the first quarter 2012 provide
complementary family of non-berylliurnased alloys and composites. This segment alsofantes beryllia ceramic products. Defense i
largest market for Beryllium and Composites, whiither markets served include industrial componentsdical, science, commerc
aerospace, energy and telecommunications infraateicProducts are also sold for acoustics, opscahning and performance automc
applications. Manufacturing facilities for Berylfiuand Composites are located in Ohio, Californidz@na and England.

Sales by Beryllium and Composite$ $16.6 million in the second quarter 2014 were4$fillion, or 3%, higher than sales of $1
million in the second quarter of 2013, while sad¢$32.1 million in the first half of 2014 were $3million, or 13%, highethan sales of $28
million in the second half of 2013. Beryllium an@m@posites does not directly pass through changticosts of its materials sold, so ut
our definition, sales and value-added sales ferghgment are the same.

Sales to the medical market grew 15% in the secuiadter 2014 and 24% in the first half of 2014 oW respective prior year peric
The growth was due to traditionalray window applications and emerging nuclear medipgplications. Sequentially, medical market <
increased significantly in the second quarter 260Mek the first quarter 2014.

Sales to the science market were slightly highéhénsecond quarter 2014 than the second quari@ &ed $2.2 million higher in the fi
half of 2014 than the first half of 2013. The grhvin the first half of 2014 was due to a sale beam pipe for the Large Hadron Collider in
first quarter 2014. We produce a beam pipe fordpiglication approximately once every twelve tchéégn months.

Sales to the telecommunications infrastructure etark smaller market for Beryllium and Compositgew 50% in both the secc
quarter and first half of 2014 over the compargggods in 2013 largely due to improved demanctéramic products.

The growth in sales to these markets in the secoiagter 2014 was partially offset by lower defensgrket sales. Sales to the defe
market, which accounted for 28% of total segmetessin the second quarter 2014, declined 16% irsdoend quarter 2014 from the sec
quarter 2013 and 11% in the first half of 2014 frdm first half of 2013. A portion of the lower salwas due to planned shipments ir
second quarter 2014 that were pushed out to the giarter 2014 due to manufacturing delays andrasisues.

Sales to the industrial componentarket were down slightly in the second quarteri2@m the second quarter 2013, but slightly hi
in the first half of 2014 than the first half of 28

The gross margin on Beryllium and Composites' saks$2.7 million (16% of sales) in the second tpre2014 and $4.5 million (28%
sales) in the second quarter 2013. Gross mardhmeifirst half of 2014 was $7.6 million (24% ofas) compared to $7.3 million (26% of sa
in the first half of 2013. While sales volumes whigher in the second quarter of 2014 than therseqoarter of 2013, the favorable impac
the increased volume on gross margin was moredffaet by an unfavorable change in product mixherginput material costs and an incre
in operating and overhead costs.

Beryllium and Composites operates in a makeftter environment and sells a variety of specidlizeoducts that are typically unique
given customer. The product mix therefore can chdngm period to period and have a significant iotma gross margins. The product mi.
the second quarter 2014 was weaker than the pracidn the second quarter 2013. The change inymbohix was favorable in the first h
of 2014 as compared to the first half of 2013 dwuetstrong product mix in the first quarter 201dyeh by various science and defe
shipments.
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In the second quarter and first half of 2013, weenable to reclaim and utilize recycled materialst reduced input material costs
improved gross margins in those periods. Due tditiiéed availability of recycled materials to bectaimed and other factors, the benefit f
utilizing this material flow was minor and our asge material input cost was higher in the secomdtguand first half of 2014 than in the s:
periods of 2013.

We also are utilizing more of the output from trexylium pebble facility at the Elmore, Ohio plasite to satisfy our internal product
demands in 2014. The operating cost of the peblalet ;s currently higher than the purchased bemilicost utilized in prior periods. T
pebble plant is designed to provide a consistepplgwof beryllium as the availability of berylliufniom external sources in future periods 1
be limited. Improvements have been made in thelpgtibnt, but its operating costs remained highrduthe first half of 2014. As efficienci
and improvements to the process are made and velumogease further, the cost per pound of the niahteroduced by the plant will decli
and become more competitive with the historicatpased price of beryllium.

Manufacturing overhead costs were higher in thers@cjuarter and first half of 2014 than the redpeqteriods of 2013 partially due
higher activity levels. Overhead costs were highethe first half of 2014 partially as a resulttok impact of the severe weather in the
quarter 2014.

SG&A, R&D and other-net expenses for Beryllium abdmposites wer&4.5 million in the second quarter 2014, an inaeeak $0.¢
million from the second quarter 2013. These expeits@led $8.2 million (26% of sales) in the finsif of 2014 compared to $7.7 million (2
of sales) in the first half of 2013. R&D expensesravhigher in the second quarter 2014 than thenskeqoarter 2013 due to an increas
project work, but were unchanged in the first ldl014 from the first half of 2013. Corporate aes were higher in both the second qu
and first half of 2014 than the same periods in2®elling expenses, primarily manpowelated costs, were also higher in the first h#
2014 than the first half of 2013.

Beryllium and Composites had an operating lossldB $nillion in the second quarter 2014 comparedrt@perating profit of $0.8 millic
in the second quarter 2013. In the first half cf20Beryllium and Composites lost $0.7 million caargd to an operating loss of $0.5 milliol
the first half of 2013.

Technical Materials

Second Quarter Ended First Half Ended

Jun. 27, Jun. 28, Jun. 27, Jun. 28,
(Millions) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Sales $ 155 $ 19€ $ 291 $ 38«
Value-added sales 9.€ 12.: 18.¢ 23.c
Operating profit aL{© 2.4 1.1 3.8

Technical Materials’ capabilities include clad inlay and overlay metgigecious and base metal electroplated systemstraiebear
welded systems, contour profiled systems and saldated metal systems. These specialty strip metalugts provide a variety of therrr
electrical or mechanical properties from a surfagea or particular section of the material. Ouddiag and plating capabilities allow fo
precious metal or other base metal to be appliembittinuous strip form only where it is needed,uadg the material cost to the custome
well as providing design flexibility and performandviajor applications for these products includerextors, contacts, power lead frames
semiconductors, while the largest markets are aotiomelectronics and consumer electronics. Thegynend medical markets are smaller
offer further growth opportunities. Technical Ma&ds’ products are manufactured at our Rhode Isfantlity.

Sales from Technical Materials of $15.5 milliontlre second quarter 2014 were 21% lower than sdl&4 %6 million in the secor
quarter 2013. Sales in the first half of 2014 0®3$2million were 24% lower than sales of $38.0 imillin the first half of 2013. The decline
sales was primarily in inlay and selective plateadpicts.

Value-added sales of $9.6 million in the secondigu@014 were 22% lower than valadded sales of $12.3 million in the second qu
2013, while value-added sales of $18.8 millionhe first half of 2014 were 20% below valadéded sales of $23.3 million in the first hal
2013.

Value-added sales to the automotive electronics markaingel 27% in the second quarter 2014 from the s carter 2013 and 25%
the first half of 2014 from the first half of 2013he decline was largely due to softer market cior and key customers working dc
existing inventories.
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Value-added sales to the consumer electronics market 4d&telower in the second quarter 2014 than thersbgoarter 2013 and 4«
lower in the first half of 2014 than the first haff2013. The decline was partially due to the pkasg of a disk drive application due to char
in technologies in the first half of 2013. Consuraksctronics valuadded sales in the first half of 2014 were only lé%er than in the seco
half of 2013.

Value-added sales to the energy market were relativalyiril the second quarter 2014 compared to the degoarter 2013 but were
38% in the first half of 2014 over the first haff 2013 primarily due to new product developmenbre§. Value-added sales to this segment
other smaller markets also grew in the first h&2@14 over the first half of 2013.

New products accounted for approximately 20% oftirézal Materials’ value-added sales in the secaratter 2014.

The gross margin on Technical Materials' sales $@% million, or 20% of sales, in the second qua2@l4 compared to $4.6 million,
24% of sales, in the second quarter 2013. Grosgimé#or this segment was $5.1 million, or 18% olesain the first half of 2014 and $
million, or 22% of sales, in the first half of 201Gross margin was also 27% of value-added saléseifiirst half of 2014 and 35% of value-
added sales in the first half of 2013.

The lower gross margin in the second quarter 20t4fiast half of 2014 compared to the respectivequs of the prior year was larg
due to the lower valuadded sales. The change in product mix was alsavardble in the second quarter and first half df42@nd contribute
to the lower gross margin. The impact of these stevas partially offset by lower manufacturing oveat costs in the second quarter and
half of 2014 compared to the same periods of 2818 r@sult of the reduced activity levels and costrol efforts.

SG&A, R&D and othemet expenses totaled $2.1 million in the secondtgqua014, down slightly from the total expense$22 millior
in the second quarter 2013. Theses expenses t&4lédnillion (14% of sales) in the first half 024 compared to $4.4 million (12% of sa
in the first half of 2013. Expenses were 21% ofieahdded sales in the first half of 2014 and 19%atieadded sales in the first half of 20
The lower expense dollars in the second quarterfisstchalf of 2014 resulted from cost control effoenacted in response to the lower ¢
volumes and reduced incentive compensation expiureséo the change in profitability.

Technical Materials generated an operating paffi$1.0 million in the second quarter 2014 and $8ildion in the second quarter 20
Operating profit of $1.1 million in the first hatf 2014 was $2.7 million lower than the operatimgfip of $3.8 million in the first half of 201
Operating profit was 4% of sales and 6% of valudeadsales in the first half of 2014 and 10% ofsaled 16% of valuadded sales in the fi
half of 2013.
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Value-Added Sales - Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Mease

A reconciliation of sales to value-added salespa-®AAP measure, for each reportable segment anchéoitCompany in total for tl
second quarter and first half of 2014 and 2013 ilows:

Second Quarter Ended First Half Ended
Jun. 27, Jun. 28, Jun. 27, Jun. 28,
(Millions) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Sales
Advanced Material Technologies $ 1791 $ 196.( $ 342°: $ 389«
Performance Alloys 76.¢ 74.: 143.¢ 148.¢
Beryllium and Composites 16.€ 16.2 32.1 28.t
Technical Materials 15 19.€ 29.1 38.C
All Other — — — —
Total $ 288.C $ 3061 $ 546.¢ $ 605.
Less: Pass-through Metal Cost
Advanced Material Technologies $ 109.2 $ 130.& $ 206.6 $ 256.(
Performance Alloys 13.2 15.t 25.2 30.¢
Beryllium and Composites — — — —
Technical Materials 5.6 7.3 10.z 14.7
All Other — — — —
Total $ 128« $ 153.€ $ 242. $ 301t
Value-added Sales
Advanced Material Technologies $ 69¢ $ 652z $ 1355 $ 133«
Performance Alloys 63.5 58.¢ 118.1 118.1
Beryllium and Composites 16.€ 16.2 32.1 28.t
Technical Materials 9.€ 12.: 18.¢ 23.c
All Other — — — —
Total $ 159.¢ $ 152f $ 304t $ 303.¢

The cost of gold, silver, platinum, palladium amgbper can be quite volatile. Our pricing policytasdirectly pass the cost of these me
on to the customer in order to mitigate the impEaetal price volatility on our results from opeoas. Trends and comparisons of sale:
affected by movements in the market prices of theetals, but changes in sales due to metal prioeements may not have a proportior
impact on our profitability.

Internally, management reviews sales on a valueddihsis. Value-added sales is a B¥AP measure that deducts the value o
pass-through metals sold from sales. Vadded sales allows management to assess the impdaifferences in sales between peri
segments or markets and analyze the resulting mam@yid profitability without the distortion of threovements in the paskrough met:
values. The dollar amount of gross margin and dpeyarofit is not affected by the valwalded sales calculation. We sell other metals
materials that are not considered direct pass-tfit@and their costs are not deducted from sales wdieulating value-added sales.

Our sales are also affected by changes in thefusestomersupplied metal. When we manufacture a preciousimetduct, the custom
may purchase metal from us or may elect to proitglewn metal, in which case we process the matal toll basis and the metal value ¢
not flow through sales or cost of sales. In eitteese, we generally earn our margin based uponatwichtion efforts. The relationship of t
margin to sales can change depending upon whdtkeproduct was made from our metal or the cust@ndihe use of valuadded sale
removes the potential distortion in the comparigbgales caused by changes in the level of custemaslied metal.

By presenting information on sales and vahdgled sales, it is our intention to allow userswf financial statements to review our s
with and without the impact of the pass-throughatset
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LEGAL

Standards for exposure to beryllium are under ve\ig the United States Occupational Safety and tHefdministration (OSHA) and t
other governmental and private standsetting organizations. One result of these revieilidikely be more stringent worker safety standis
Some organizations, such as the California OccopatiHealth and Safety Administration and the Awemi Conference of Governmel
Industrial Hygienists, have adopted standards #natmore stringent than the current standards dflAOSThe development, proposal
adoption of more stringent standards may affectiingng decisions by the users of berylliwwataining products. If the standards are r
more stringent and/or our customers or other dawast users decide to reduce their use of beryltontaining products, our results
operations, liquidity and financial condition coldd materially adversely affected. The impact of gotential adverse effect would depen:
the nature and extent of the changes to the stdsiddre cost and ability to meet the new standanésextent of any reduction in customer
and other factors. The magnitude of this potemtitderse effect cannot be estimated.

There were two chronic beryllium disease (CBD) samatstanding against us as of the end of the segoarter 2014. Both cases w
filed prior to 2014. A loss reserve of $0.2 millieras recorded on our Consolidated Balance Sheeftthe end of the second quarter 201«
these two cases. No settlement payments were nmaldeceother CBD cases were filed or dismissed duthie first half of 2014.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Net cash provided from used in operatiomss $1.5 million in the first half of 2014, as tgewth in various working capital iten
including accounts receivable and inventory, andeeline in longterm liabilities, more than offset net income, #igects of depreciatio
amortization and stock compensation expense.

Cashwas $18.1 million as of the end of the second gu&®14 compared to $22.8 million as of year-ent320

Accounts receivablef $121.8 million as of the end of the second qra@014 were $8.8 million, or 8% higher, than teeeivabl
balance of $113.0 million as of yeand 2013. This increase was primarily due to a glown in the average collection period. The dayss
outstanding (DSO), a measure of the average cteperiod, was approximately 38 days as of theddrttle second quarter 2014 compare
approximately 36 days as of the end of 2013. Th@® @S of the end of the second quarter 2014 wasyprovement over the DSO as of the
of the first quarter 2014. We maintain credit piglecand practices that include ongoing evaluatibthe credit position of our current ¢
potential customers and we aggressively managexpgosures and the collectability of our receivablé®e bad debt expense in the first ha
2014 was immaterial.

Inventoriestotaled $254.8 million as of the end of the secqudrter 2014, an increase of $22.0 million, or 8#¢ce yeaend 2013. Th
inventory turnover ratio, a measure of how effeaivinventory is utilized, slowed down slightly the second quarter 2014 from yese
2013.

A portion of the inventory increase was in berytiitnydroxide at our Utah operations as a resulhefcyclical nature of our mining
activities and the planned timing of extracting anel the deployment of our mining resources.

Inventory also increased as a result of buildinfjdvs, the purchase of raw material input to suppales in future periods with long
production times and other factors, primarily wittihe Performance Alloy and Beryllium and Compas#epply chains.

We use the last-in, firgut (LIFO) method for valuing a large portion ofra@bmestic inventories. By so doing, the most recest o
various raw materials, including gold, copper aiekel, is charged to cost of sales in the curreartqal. The older, and often lower, costs
used to value the inventory on hand. Thereforerettirchanges in the cost of raw materials subgethé LIFO valuation method have onl
minimal impact on changes in the inventory carryiatue.
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Capital expendituregor the first half of 2014 and 2013 are summariasdollows:

First Half Ended

Jun. 27, Jun. 28,
(Millions) 2014 2013
Capital expenditures $ 12.¢ % 13.C
Mine development 0.3 4.4
Total $ 132 $ 17.

The majority of the capital spending in the firaiftof 2014 was on small discrete projects. Majajgcts included an upgrade to the ¢
rolling equipment at the Reading, Pennsylvanialifgcind a new chamber for optical filter procesgsat the Westford, Massachusetts faci
Capital spending also included a number of infracttire and support projects, including R&D equipmenwer supplies, security systems
information technology projects. Additional capitglending on the beryllium facility at the Elmolamn site, which was initially constructed
part of a multi-year $104.9 million Title Ill corstct with the U.S. Department of Defense, was mindne first half of 2014.

Intangible assetsvere $21.5 million at the end of the second quaZtEr4, a decline of $2.7 milliosince the end of 2013 due to
current period amortization.

Other liabilities and accrued itemsvere $47.8 million at the end of the second qua2644, a decrease of $7.0 million from yeac
2013. The payment of the 2013 annual incentive ersation to employees in the first quarter 2014 tlvasnain cause of the decline. Vari
accruals for utilities, professional services, atfier items changed due to business levels, sddsatars or other causes.

Unearned revenue which is a liability representing products invoidedcustomers but not yet shipped, &sl million at the end of tl
second quarter 2014 compared to $0.5 million aPetember 31, 2013. Revenue and the associated mailjibe recognized for the
transactions when the goods ship, title passesatwudher revenue recognition criteria are met.oining in advance of the shipment, whic
only done in certain circumstances, allows us teecbcash sooner than we would otherwise.

Unearned incomewvas $54.1 million at the end of the second qu&®drd compared to $56.5 million as of yesd 2013. This balan
represents the unamortized reimbursements frorgdgliernment for equipment purchases for the newllneryfacility made under the Title |
program. The reduction to unearned income in tis fialf of 2014 was recorded against cost of satethe Consolidated Statements of Inc
and offset the depreciation expense recorded onuttterlying equipment. Depreciation and amortizatexpense on the Consolide
Statement of Cash Flows is depicted net of theesponding reduction in unearned income. See Ndte the Consolidated Financ
Statements.

Theretirement and post-employment benefitability totaled $56.9 million at the end of thiest half of 2014 compared to $80.3 mill
as of December 31, 2013. This balance represeet§atility under our domestic defined benefit gensplan, the retiree medical plan i
other retirement plans and post-employment obbgeti

The liability for the retiree medical plan was redd by $14.0 million in the first quarter 2014 aseault of a change in the bene
offered to participants in the plan. See Liquiditgcussion.

The liability for the domestic defined benefit pmsplan declined $9.3 million in the first half 2014 as a result of contributions to
plan totaling $11.8 million and an adjustment tbestcomprehensive income of $2.2 million offsefpart by the first half expense of $
million.

The retirement and postmployment benefits liability was also affecteddifferences between the payments made under othes,ghi
quarterly expense for all of these plans and dtztors.

Debttotaled $80.3 million as of the end of the secondrter 2014, an increase of $15.5 million overytharend 2013 balance of $6-
million. The increase in debt along with a portmfithe excess cash was used to fund capital exfpead] the buy back of shares, the divid
paid to shareholders and the net growth in workiagital in the first half of 2014. Debt declined28a. million in the second quarter 2014 fi
the $92.9 million total debt balance as of the ehtthe first quarter 2014.
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Outstanding short-term debt was $33.4 million athefend of the second quarter 2014, while longrtebt totaled $46.9 million.
We were in compliance with all of our debt covesaad of the end of the second quarter 2014.

Shareholders’ equitywas $487.9 million as of the end of the first kafl2014 compared to $463.3 million as of yead 2013. The ma
cause of the increase in equity in the first h&alR@14 was comprehensive income of $28.0 milliohisTincrease was partially offset by
payment of dividends and the repurchase of comnmacksEquity was also affected by stock compensaginpense, the exercise of st
options and other factors.

Prior Year Financial Position

Net cash provided from operationgas $18.1 million in the first half of 2013, as metome, the effects of depreciation, amortizaton
stock compensation expense and other items offee$2.2 million decrease in accounts payable antuad items (which was partially due
the payment of the 2012 incentive compensatiomtpleyees during the first quarter 2013).

The accounts receivable balance of $129.8 millicthe@ end of the second quarter 2013 was 3% hitjaerthe yeaend 2012 balance d
to an increase in sales and a slightly slower ctdia period. Inventories totaled $207.6 millionthe end of the second quarter 2013
increase of $1.5 million from ye@nd 2012. The increase was partially due to thehmse of beryllium feed stock to augment the prdn
from the beryllium pebble plant in the second 0&l2013.

The retirement and post-employment benefit balamas $2.6 million lower at the end of the secondrgma?013 than yeasnd 201
largely due to contributions to the domestic defipension benefit plan of $5.5 million offset inrpphy the expense recorded for the var
plans and other factors.

Capital expenditures totaled $17.4 million and e $0.9 million for the pebble plant in the firstif of 2013.The capital expenditur
total also included mine development costs of $dilllon that were part of a $14.5 million pit in &h that was started in 2012. We compl
the pit and began extracting the ore late in tlverse quarter of 2013.

Dividends paid totaled $3.2 million in the firstihaf 2013. The quarterly dividend was increasemrfr$0.075 per share to $0.08 per s
in the second quarter 2013.

Outstanding debt increased from $94.3 million atrygnd 2012 to $96.1 million at the end of the seapmarter 2013. The increased ¢
coupled with the cash from operations was usedrid tapital expenditures and the dividend paymenstareholders.

Cash balances totaled $15.7 million at the enti@&econd quarter 2013, a decrease of $0.4 mdirare year-end 2012
Off-balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obgations

We maintain the majority of our precious metals angbrtion of our copper that we use in productora consignment basis in orde
reduce our exposure to metal price movements ameldiace our working capital investment. The balamgtstanding under these diflanc
sheet consignment arrangements totaled $235.4omidls of the end of the second quarter 2014 compar&255.8 million as of yeanc
2013. The decline in the outstanding balance wastdwa reduction in the quantity of silver and goldhand partially offset by higher me
prices at the end of the second quarter 2014 vénsugear-end 2013 prices.

We were in compliance with the covenants containexir consignment agreements as of June 27, 2014.

While borrowings under existing lines of creditrieased in the first half of 2014, we did not ent¢o any new agreements during

period. For additional information on our contradtobligations, please see page 40 of our AnnugloReon Form 1K for the year ende
December 31, 2013.
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Liquidity

We believe funds from operations plus the availddderowing capacity and the current cash balaneeadequate to support opera
requirements, capital expenditures, projected pangian contributions, the payment of quarterlyidiwnds, share repurchases, environm
remediation projects and strategic acquisitions.

Cash used in operations was $1.5 million in thst fivalf of 2014. However, cash flow from operati@mproved in the second qual
2014 over the first quarter 2014, as cash usegérations totaled $23.2 million in the first quarg®14 while cash generated by operal
totaled $21.7 million in the second quarter 2013 hot unusual for us to consume cash in thé diosirter of a given year, partially due to
payment of the prior-year incentive compensatioartployees, and then generate cash from operati@rghe balance of the year.

In January 2014, our Board of Directors approvexdaa to repurchase up to $50.0 million of our commstock. The timing of the sh:
purchases will depend on several factors, includimgrket and business conditions, our cash flow,t debels and other investmi
opportunities. There is no minimum required purehgsantity for a given year and the purchases neayliscontinued at any time. \
purchased approximately 86,000 shares at a c&.@fmillion in the first half of 2014.

We paid dividends to our shareholders totaling $8idlion in the first half of 2014. Our Board of fictors increased the quartt
dividend from $0.08 per share to $0.085 per shatkea second quarter 2014. We intend to pay a eadividend on an ongoing basis, suk
to a continuing strong capital structure and ardeteation that the dividend remains in the bestriest of the shareholders.

In the first quarter 2014, we notified the partaoips in the domestic retiree medical plan that weevehanging from a defined benefit |
to a defined contribution plan for the majoritytbé plan participants. Under the revised benefitcstire, we will contribute a fixed amount
cash that the participant may use to purchase @aiqablicy best suited to his or her own needsinropen exchange. The revised structt
designed to lower costs for the Company and thécjzants. Based upon the actuarial calculationthefimpact of this revision, we reduced
retiree medical liability $14.0 million in the firgjuarter 2014, with the offset recorded as a trediother comprehensive income wit
shareholdersequity. This $14.0 million benefit from the reduxctiin the liability will be recorded in income ratg over the average remain
service life, or approximately 9.5 years. Our cpahouts under the plan are anticipated to be lawer time as well.

Our domestic defined benefit pension plan was ufleded as of the end of the first half 2014. Cdmittions to the plan are determil
by a variety of factors, including the plan fundatio, plan investment performance, discount radefyarial assumptions, plan amendm
our policies and objectives, the availability oBbaand other factors. We anticipate making contidms of approximately $19.0 million to {
plan during 2014. Contributions in the first halfaD14 totaledb11.8 million, which included $3.8 million that wasiginally scheduled for tt
fourth quarter 2013, but we were able to deferluhé first quarter 2014. Contributions to be mauéhe second half of 2014 will be func
with cash from operations or borrowings under éxislines of credit.

As a result of the increase in debt during the fiedf of 2014, the total debt-to-debt-plequity ratio, a measure of balance sheet leve
increased from an unusually low 12% as of year-20iB3 to 14% as of the end of the second quarte4.Zte debt-to-debt-plusguity ratic
was 16% as of the end of the first quarter 201iarRo the fourth quarter 2013, the debt-to-dehisgquity ratio was at or above 16% for
previous 15 consecutive quarters.

The available and unused borrowing capacity unberexisting lines of credit, which is subject tmiliations setforth in the dek
covenants, was $176.6 million as of June 27, 2014.revolving line of credit matures in 2018. Matuig longterm debt payments to be m.
in 2014 total $0.6 million.

The available and unused capacity under thédalfince sheet consignment lines totaled $183.2omifls of the end of the second quz
2014.

We also had $18.1 million of cash as of the enthefsecond quarter 2014.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

For additional information regarding critical acoting policies, please refer to pages 43 to 46uofAnnual Report on Form 1R-for the
year ended December 31, 2013. There have been tavimh@hanges in our critical accounting policg&sce the inclusion of this discussiol
our Annual Report on Form 10-K.

OUTLOOK

Market conditions remained mixed as of early in tthied quarter 2014 and the economic growth ratslasver than what we previou:
anticipated. Valuedded sales into the consumer electronics markegased in the first half of the year and we amgtipmed to capitalize ¢
product development opportunities. However, dastneam competitive forces and changes in technedogiay unfavorably impact our sale
future periods. We anticipate that the governmeending patterns will continue to negatively impabipments of optics. Shipments to
defense market for traditional beryllium produetile solid over the longer term, should continadog subject to quarter-tpuarter variatio
largely due to the timing of program releases amitttschedules. Demand from the automotive eleateomarket softened in the first half
2014 due to an inventory overhang and other facbutsapplications for our materials are expandiog to their performance characteristic
automobile manufacturers are providing longer waiea and building more infotainment capabilitie®itheir cars. We continue to expand
application base within the oil and gas sector,duntoverall sales are somewhat dependent upgprite of oil and the active rig count.

The plant consolidation program has provided casings as anticipated. As we move through the skbalf of 2014, the savings w
continue, but the amount of those savings relativ@013 will decline since a portion of the actidaken started generating savings in
second half of 2013.

Our results in the first half of 2014 included agk insurance settlement and gain on the sale oipewnt as part of the ple
consolidation program. These gains will not repedhe second half of 2014.

After consuming cash in the first quarter 2014 hcésw from operations was positive in the secondrter 2014. We will look to furth
improve our working capital utilization and redwtebt over the balance of the year.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
Portions of the narrative set forth in this docutdat are not statements of historical or curfants are forwardeoking statements,
particular, the outlook provided above. Our actiudiire performance may materially differ from traintemplated by the forwatldeking
statements as a result of a variety of factorssé&tactors include, in addition to those mentioaksdwhere herein:
« Actual sales, operating rates and margins for Z
< Our ability to strengthen our internal control ofierancial reporting and disclosure controls anolcpdures
e The global econom
e The impact of the U.S. Federal Government shutdamassequestratior
e The condition of the markets which we serve, whetlefined geographically or by segment, with thgamanarket segments beil
consumer electronics, industrial components, corisleaerospace, defense, science, automotive efeécs; medical, energy a
telecommunications infrastructure;
e Changes in product mix and the financial conditégustomer:

* Our success in developing and introducing nevdpets and new product ranp-rates

» Our success in passing through the costs of ravermbs to customers or otherwise mitigating flutitug prices for those materie
including the impact of fluctuating prices on intery values;

« Our success in integrating acquired busine
* The impact of the results of acquisitions on odlitglio achieve fully the strategic and financ@jectives related to these acquisitit
« Our success in achieving the expected benefits frenfacility consolidation:

* Our success in implementing our strategic pkmd the timely and successful completion and saudf any capital projects, includi
the new primary beryllium facility in EImore, Ohio;

< The availability of adequate lines of credit and #ssociated interest ra

« Other financial factors, including the cost andikmmslity of raw materials (both base and precionstals), physical inventory valuatio
metal financing fees, tax rates, exchange ratessipe costs and required cash contributions andramployee benefit costs, ene
costs, regulatory compliance costs, the cost amdadility of insurance, and the impact of the Camys stock price on the cost
incentive compensation plans;

e The uncertainties related to the impact of warptést activities and acts of G¢

< Changes in government regulatory requirements lamémnactment of new legislation that impacts oligabions and operatior

< The conclusion of pending litigation matters in@ttance with our expectation that there will benmaterial adverse effects; ¢

e The risk factors set forth in Part 1, Iltem 1Aoc0fr Annual Report on Form 10for the year ended December 31, 2I
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Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk
For information regarding market risks, pleaserr&depages 48 and 49 of our Annual Report on FobAK Tor the year ended Decem
31, 2013. There have been no material changesrimatket risks since the inclusion of this discassin our Annual Report on Form 10-K.

ltem 4. Controls and Procedures

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

As previously disclosed in Item 9A of our Form KOfer the year ended December 31 2013, managenoeriuded that there wa
material weakness in internal control over finahoéorting in the physical inventory count recdiation process. Actions have been take
remediate this material weakness. As new contr@lstll being developed and others have not begiace long enough to provide suffici
assurances to support the conclusion that theifiehiaterial weakness has been fully remediateghagement concluded that, as of Jun
2014, there was a material weakness in internataloover financial reporting in the physical ingery count reconciliation process.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation under the superviaimh with the participation of our management, idislg the chief executive offic
and chief financial officer, of the effectivenesktbe design and operation of our disclosure cdsitemd procedures as of June 27, :
pursuant to Rule 13a-15(b) and 1B8kb) under the Securities Act of 1934, as amenBaded upon that evaluation, our management, iimai
our chief executive officer and chief financial ioéfr, concluded that our disclosure controls weseaffective as of June 27, 2014 due tc
material weakness described above.

There have been no changes in our internal coate financial reporting that occurred during theder ended June 27, 2014 that |
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenally affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.
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PART Il OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

Our subsidiaries and our holding company are stifjexn time to time, to a variety of civil and adhistrative proceedings arising oul
our normal operations, including, without limitatioproduct liability claims, health, safety and eommental claims and employmemtatec
actions. Among such proceedings are cases allebiatgplaintiffs have contracted, or have been mlage risk of contracting, berylliu
sensitization or chronic beryllium disease or otherg conditions as a result of exposure to bamili(“beryllium cases”)The plaintiffs ir
beryllium cases seek recovery under negligencevaridus other legal theories and demand compensatat often punitive damages, in m
cases of an unspecified sum. Spouses of someifflagtaim loss of consortium.

Beryllium Claims
As of June 27, 2014, our subsidiary, Materion Brimh, was a defendant in two beryllium cases,esxidbed more fully below.

The Company is one of two defendants in a casénatlyg filed on September 25, 2012 in the CourtGafmmon Pleas of Philadelp
County, Pennsylvania, titled Schwartz v. Accurafissporation et al, and subsequently removed to the United Statesi@i€ourt for th
Eastern District of Pennsylvania (No. 12-6189).irRifi alleges that she contracted chronic berylidisease from “take homefxposure
resulting from her husbargl’employment at facilities at the Company and adefendant Accuratus Corporation, and asserts clém
negligence and strict liability. She seeks compemgaand exemplary damages in unspecified amounés. husband claims a loss
consortium.

The Company is one of five defendants in a casd fiin October 4, 2013 in the Superior Court ofStade of Arizona, Maricopa Coun
titted Parmar et al. v. Dolphin, Inc. et alCV 2013012980. One plaintiff alleges that he contracteeit beryllium disease from expost
that resulted from his employment at manufactufawgilities of Karsten Manufacturing Corporation @ksten”)in Arizona, and asserts clai
for negligence, strict liability, and fraudulentremalment. His wife claims a loss of consortiumother plaintiff alleges that he has b
diagnosed with beryllium sensitization that resdifteom his employment at Karsten, and assertsiendia medical monitoring. Plaintiffs se
compensatory and punitive damages and/or medicaitarmg in unspecified sums.

The Company has some insurance coverage, subjantaonual deductible.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use Bfoceeds

During the three months ended June 27, 2014, wecbpsed 35,564 shares under our stock buybackammogt an average price of
$33.87.

Total Number
of Shares
Purchased as Maximum Dollar
Part of Publicly ~ Value that May Yet

Total Number Announced Be Purchased Under
of Shares Average Price Plans or the Plans or
Period Purchased Paid per Share Programs Programs (1)
March 29 through May 2, 2014 —  $ — 50,80¢ $  48,533,37
May 3 through May 30, 2014 25,61« 33.1¢ 76,42( 47,683,56
May 31 through June 27, 2014 9,95( 35.7¢ 86,37( 47,327,73
Total 3556 $ 33.8i 21359 $ 47,327,73
@ In January 2014, our Board of Directors approvestiogek repurchase program for the repurchase o0b 59,000,000 of our comm:

stock. As of June 27, 2014, $47,327,732 may ygtusehased under the program.
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Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Information concerning mine safety violations ohart regulatory matters required by Section 1508fathe DoddFrank Wall Stree
Reform and Consumer Protection Act and Item 10Redulation K (17 CFR 229.104) is included in Exhibit 95 tosthjuarterly report ¢
Form 10-Q.
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10.2
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31.1
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32

95

101.INS

101.SCH

101.DEF

101.CAL

101.LAB

101.PRE

Exhibits

Amended and Restated Code of Regulations of Mat&mrporation.

Amended and Restated Articles of tpocation of Materion Corporation.

Amended and Restated Materion Corporation 2006kStocentive Plan (As Amended and Restated as of Wi
2014)(filed as Exhibit 4.4 to the Registration 8taént on Form S-8, Registration No. 335762, filed by th
Registrant on May 7, 2014), incorporated hereimdfgrence.

Amended and Restated Materion Corporation 2006 &woployee Director Equity Plan (As Amended and Redtas
of May 7, 2014)(filed as Exhibit 4.4 to the Regagion Statement on Form S-8, Registration No. 333761, filed b
the Registrant on May 7, 2014), incorporated helogineference.

Statement regarding computation of per share egsnin

Certification of Chief Executive Officer requireg Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a).

Certification of Chief Financial Officer requireq iRule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a).

Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chighancial Officer required by 18 U.S.C. SectiobQ.3

Mine Safety Disclosure Pursuant to Section 1508{ahe DoddFrank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protec
Act for the period ending March 28, 2014.

XBRL Instance Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docune
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenin
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caussdréport to be signed on its behal
the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

MATERION CORPORATION

Dated: August 1, 2014
/sl John D. Grampa

John D. Grampa
Senior Vice President Finance and
Chief Financial Officer
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Amended and Restated Materion Corporation 2006k3taentive Plan (As Amended and Restated as of R&014)(filec
as Exhibit 4.4 to the Registration Statement omF8r8, Registration No. 3385762, filed by the Registrant on May
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Amended and Restated Materion Corporation 2006 &woployee Director Equity Plan (As Amended and Redtas o
May 7, 2014)(filed as Exhibit 4.4 to the RegistatiStatement on Form S-8, Registration No. 393761, filed by th
Registrant on May 7, 2014), incorporated hereimgfgrence.

Statement regarding computation of per share egsnin

Certification of Chief Executive Officer requireg Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a).

Certification of Chief Financial Officer requireg iRule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a).

Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chighancial Officer required by 18 U.S.C. SectiobQ.3

Mine Safety Disclosure Pursuant to Section 1508{ahe DoddFrank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protectionfér
the period ending June 27, 2014.
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*  Submitted electronically herewith.
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Exhibit 3.1
AMENDED AND RESTATED CODE OF REGULATIONS
OF
MATERION CORPORATION

Shareholder Meetings

1. Time And Place Of Meetings. All meetings of therefmlders for the election of directors or for arlyer purpose will be held at st
time and place, within or without the State of Qlds may be designated by the Board of Directargnahe absence of a designation by
Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board afebiors, if any (the "Chairman"), the Presideng, 8ecretary or any other individual enti
to give notice pursuant to Regulation 4. The timh¢he meeting shall be stated in the notice of ingetThe Board of Director may postpt
and reschedule any previously scheduled annuglemial meeting of the shareholders.

2. Annual Meeting. An annual meeting of the sharehsldéll be held at such time and place as may Isggdated pursuant to Regulat
1, at which meeting the shareholders will elecectiors to succeed those directors whose termseeapisuch meeting and will transact <
other business as may be brought properly befereneting in accordance with Regulation 9. If theual meeting is not held or if the num
of directors elected thereat is not sufficienteplace the directors whose terms expire at thatingeand to fill all other vacancies, direct
may be elected at a special meeting called fopthpose of electing directors.

3.  Special Meetings. (a) Special meetings of sharehmsldhay be called by the Chairman, by the Presidsnt Vice President, by
majority of the Board of Directors acting with oitiaout a meeting or by any person or persons whd hot less than 50% of all the she
outstanding and entitled to be voted on any prdpioshe submitted at the meeting to be called. Bpaceetings of the holders of shares
are entitled to call a special meeting by virtueany Preferred Stock Designation may call such imgetin the manner and for the purpc
provided in the applicable terms of such Prefer&dck Designation. For purposes of this Amended Bedtated Code of Regulatic
"Preferred Stock Designation” means the expresastef shares of any class or series of capitakstddhe Corporation, whether now
hereafter issued, with rights to distributions serio those of the Common Stock including, with&iotitation, any relative, participatin
optional or other special rights and privilegesaofd any qualifications or restrictions on, sucarsh.

(b) Upon written request by any person or persatgled to call a meeting of shareholders deliveregerson or by registered mail to
President or the Secretary, such officer shallhfeith cause notice of the meeting to be given ® ghareholders entitled to notice of <
meeting in accordance with Regulation 4. If suckiceoshall not be given within 60 days after théivéey or mailing of such request, 1
person or persons requesting the meeting may éxtithe of the meeting and give, or cause to bengiwetice in the manner provided
Regulation 4.

4.  Notice Of Meetings. Written notice of every meetiofgthe shareholders called in accordance witheiRsgulations (including a
postponed and rescheduled meeting), stating thes filace and purposes for which the meeting iedaikill be given by or at the direction
the President, a Vice President, the Secretary érsaistant Secretary (or in case of their reftsaive notice by the person or persons en
to call the meeting under Regulation 3). Such eotidl be given by personal delivery, by mail or électronic medium not fewer than 7
more than 60 calendar days before the date of #eting to each shareholder of record entitled ticamf such meeting. If such notice
mailed, it shall be addressed to the shareholddre respective addresses as they appear aedbeds of the Corporation, and notice sha
deemed to have been given on the day so mailedcéNot adjournment of a meeting need not be givahd time and place to which it
adjourned are fixed and announced at such meeting.

5. Inspectors. Inspectors of election may be appdito act at any meeting of shareholders in accae with Ohio law.
6. Shareholder Lists. At any meeting of shareholdaemsalphabetically arranged list, or classifiedslistf the shareholders of record a

the applicable record date who are entitled to v&hewing their respective addresses and the nuarizkclasses of shares held by each,
be produced on the request of any shareholder.




7. Quorum. To constitute a quorum at any meeting afedfolders, there shall be present, in person qrbyy, shareholders of rece
entitled to exercise not less than a majority efibting power of the Corporation in respect of ang of the purposes for which the meetir
called, unless a greater or lesser number is esigrpsovided for with respect to a particular classeries of capital stock by the terms of
applicable Preferred Stock Designation. Except ag bre otherwise provided in any Preferred Stockigiedion, the holders of a majority
the voting power of the Corporation representegdrson or by proxy at a meeting of shareholdergtiér or not a quorum be present,
adjourn the meeting from time to time. For purposkshis Amended and Restated Code of Regulatitreging power of the Corporatio
means the aggregate voting power of (a) all thetantding shares of Common Stock of the Corporatiah(b) all the outstanding shares of
class or series of capital stock of the Corporatiwat has (i) rights to distributions senior todbaf the Common Stock including, with
limitation, any relative, participating, optional other special rights and privileges of, and auoglifications or restrictions on, such shares
(ii) voting rights entitling such shares to votengeally in the election of directors.

8.  Voting. Except as otherwise expressly required d, Ithe Amended and Restated Articles of Incorpamabr this Amended ai
Restated Code of Regulations, at any meeting akkbéders at which a quorum is present, a majoffitye votes cast, whether in person ¢
proxy, on any matter properly brought before suaetimg in accordance with Regulation 9 will be #w of the shareholders. An absten
shall not represent a vote cast. A shareholder mieagke any proxy that is not irrevocable by attegdhe meeting and voting in person o
filing with the Secretary written notice of revoicat or a later appointment. The vote upon any dgoredbrought before a meeting of
shareholders may be by voice vote, unless othemepeired by law, the Amended and Restated Artiofdscorporation or this Amended ¢
Restated Code of Regulations or unless the pregifificer otherwise determines. Every vote takenwbigten ballot will be counted by t
inspectors of election, if inspectors of electioa appointed.

9.  Order Of Business. (a) The Chairman, or such otfffezer of the Corporation as is designated by gonitt of the total number
directors that the Corporation would have if thesere no vacancies on the Board of Directors (sughber being referred to as the "Wt
Board"), will call meetings of shareholders to arded will act as presiding officer thereof Unlestberwise determined by the Boarc
Directors prior to the meeting, the presiding ddfiof the meeting of shareholders will also deteemihe order of business and have
authority in his or her sole discretion to reguldite conduct of any such meeting, including, withidmitation, (i) by imposing restrictions
the persons (other than shareholders of the Cdiporer their duly appointed proxies) who may attemy such shareholders' meeting, (ii
ascertaining whether any shareholder or his progy e excluded from any meeting of shareholdergdagpon the presiding office
determination that any such person has unduly plisduor is likely to disrupt the proceedings of theeting and (iii) by determining t
circumstances in which and time at which any persagy make a statement or ask questions at anymgegftshareholders.

(b) At an annual meeting of the shareholders, only ductiness will be conducted or considered as ipgytp brought before ti
meeting. To be properly brought before an annuadtimg, business must be (i) specified in the notiteneeting (or any supplement ther:
given by or at the direction of the President, aevPresident, the Secretary or an Assistant Segrigtaaccordance with Regulation 4,
otherwise properly brought before the meeting by phesiding officer or by or at the direction ofrajority of the Whole Board or (i
otherwise properly requested to be brought befueaneeting by a shareholder of the Corporatiorcaoalance with Regulation 9(c).

(c) For business to be properly requested by a shatehtd be brought before an annual meeting, theebbider must (i) be
shareholder of the Corporation of record at theetwh the giving of the notice for such annual nmagtas provided for in this Amended
Restated Code of Regulations, (ii) be entitleddtewat such meeting and (iii) have given timelytien notice of the request to the Secretan
be timely, a shareholder's notice must be deliveweat mailed and received at the principal exeeutiffices of the Corporation not fewer tl
60 nor more than 90 calendar days prior to the alnmeetingprovided, however, that in the event public announcement of the datheoannue
meeting is not made at least 75 calendar days twithe date of the annual meeting and the anneeting is held on a date more than
calendar days before or after the first anniversdithe date on which the prior year's annual megetvas held, notice by the shareholder, 1
timely, must be so received not later than theectifsbusiness on the 10th calendar day followirgdhy on which public announcement is
made of the date of the annual meeting. A shareh'sldotice to the Secretary must set forth asth enatter the shareholder proposes to
before the annual meeting (A) a description in @eable detail of the business desired to be brobgfure the annual meeting and the rea
for conducting such business at the annual meefB)gthe name and address, as they appear on ttpoaton's books, of the shareho
proposing such business and of the beneficial owhether than the shareholder,
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on whose behalf the proposal is made, (C) the @adsnumber of shares of the Corporation that anmeed beneficially and of record by
shareholder proposing such business and by thditi@hewner, if other than the shareholder, on séadehalf the proposal is made and
any material interest of the shareholder proposimch business and the beneficial owner, if othan tthe shareholder, on whose behal
proposal is made in such business. Notwithstanttiadoregoing provisions of this Amended and Rest&ode of Regulations, a sharehc
must also comply with all applicable requiremerftthe Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amenaled the rules and regulations thereu
with respect to the matters set forth in this Ratioh 9(c). For purposes of this Regulation 9(a) &egulation 14, "public announceme
means disclosure in a press release reported bRdheJones News Service, Associated Press, or aalganational news service or i
document publicly filed by the Corporation with tBecurities and Exchange Commission pursuant ttoBecl3, 14 or 15 of the Securi
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or publicly fiydthe Corporation with any national securitieshenge or quotation service throi
which the Corporation's stock is listed or tradedfurnished by the Corporation to its shareholdhsthing in this Regulation 9(c) will |
deemed to affect any rights of shareholders toesgunclusion of proposals in the Corporation'sxgrstatement pursuant to Rule 18amnde
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

(d) At a special meeting of shareholders, only sucliness may be conducted or considered as is propaslyght before the meeting.
be properly brought before a special meeting, lassirmust be (i) specified in the notice of the megedor any supplement thereto) given b
at the direction of the President, a Vice Presiddw Secretary or an Assistant Secretary (or && ad their failure to give any required not
the other persons entitled to give notice) in adance with Regulation 4 or (ii) otherwise brougafdre the meeting by the presiding office
by or at the direction of a majority of the Wholedd.

(e) The determination of whether any business sougbttbrought before any annual or special meetintp®fshareholders is prope
brought before such meeting in accordance withReigulation 9 will be made by the presiding offioéisuch meeting. If the presiding offi
determines that any business is not properly brobgfore such meeting, he or she will so declatéaneeting and any such business wil
be conducted or considered.

10. Report To Shareholders. At the annual meetingt tmieameeting held in lieu thereof, the officerstod Corporation shall lay befc
the shareholders a financial statement as reqbiyefatute.

11. Action Without A Meeting. Any action that may betlaorized or taken at a meeting of the shareholdexg be authorized or tak
without a meeting in a writing or writings signed &ll of the shareholders who would be entitledidtice of a meeting for such purpose, wi
writing or writings shall be filed with or entereghon the records of the Corporation.

Directors

12. Function. Except where the law, the Amended andta®s$ Articles of Incorporation or this Amended aRdstated Code
Regulations requires action to be authorized cendby the shareholders, all of the authority of @oeporation shall be exercised by or ui
the direction of the Board of Directors.

13. Number, Terms And Election Of Directors. (a) Utitie 2017 annual meeting of shareholders, the direactf the corporation, otr
than those who may be expressly elected by virfubeoterms of any Preferred Stock Designation|l sfeaclassified with respect to the ti
for which they severally hold office into three s$&s. Except as may be otherwise provided in agfgiPed Stock Designation, each class
consist of not less than three directors, unlesisuentil the number of directors of any such classhanged in accordance with this Regul:
13. The number of directors of any class will béedmined from time to time by (i) the affirmativete of the holders of a majority of 1
voting power of the Corporation, voting togethemasingle class, or (ii) a vote of a majority of Whole Board.

(b)  Directors elected at or prior to the 2014 annuatting of shareholders will hold office for the tewhthree years from the date
their election and until the election of their sessors (with each remaining director whose terns chamt expire at such meeting being refe
to for the remainder of such term as a “ContinuBigssified Director”).At the 2015 annual meeting of shareholders, thectbirs elected
succeed those directors whose terms expire atrthating will hold office for the term of two yedrsm the date of their election and until
election of their successors. At the 2016 annuadting of shareholders, the directors elected teceent those directors whose terms expi
that meeting will hold office for the term of onear from




the date of their election and until the electidriteir successors. At the 2017 annual meetinghafeholders, and each annual meetir
shareholders thereafter, each director will betetbéfor a term expiring at the next annual meetihghareholders and until the election of t
SuCCessors.

(c) At each annual meeting of the shareholders of tp&ation, the successors to the directors whersest expire at that meeting sl
be elected by a plurality of all the votes cassath meeting. Election of directors of the Corporaineed not be by written ballot unl
requested by the presiding officer or by the hadsfra majority of the voting power of the Corpaatpresent in person or represente:
proxy at a meeting of the shareholders at whichatlirs are to be elected. Directors may also betezleby a majority of the votes cast
special meeting called for the purpose of electiingctors or as may otherwise be provided by aeydPred Stock Designation.

14. Newly Created Directorships And Vacancies. Excapinay be otherwise provided in any Preferred Sbegignation, any vacan
(including newly created directorships resultingnfr any increase in the number of directors and\aoancies on the Board of Direct
resulting from death, resignation, disqualificatisemoval, or other cause) may be filled by (i) #férmative vote of a majority of ti
remaining directors then in office, even thougtslsan a quorum of the Board of Directors, (ii)esmmaining director or (iii) the affirmati
vote of the holders of a majority of the Voting Rovef the Corporation, voting together as a singgss, after a vote to increase the numb
directors at a meeting called for that purpose dooedance with this Amended and Restated Code gtilR&ons. Any director elected
accordance with this Regulation 14, any PreferretkSDesignation or applicable statute will holdiad for the remainder of the full term
the class of directors in which the new directqushias created or the vacancy occurred and until director's successor has been elected.

15. Removal. Except as may otherwise be provided byRmeferred Stock Designation, all Directors, foratdver terms elected, st
hold office subject to applicable statutory proeis as to the creation of vacancies and removakiged, however, that any Continu
Classified Director may be removed only for calde.decrease in the number of directors constitutirigBoard of Directors may shorten
term of any incumbent director.

16. Nominations Of Directors; Election. (a) Except agyntbe otherwise provided in any Preferred Stockighesion, only persons wi
are nominated in accordance with this Regulatiowilebe eligible for election at a meeting of sbholders to be members of the Boar
Directors of the Corporation.

(b) Nominations of persons for election as directorshef Corporation may be made only at a meetinghafeholders (i) by or at t
direction of the Board of Directors or a committeereof or (ii) by any shareholder who is a shalddroof record at the time of giving of not
provided for in this Regulation 16, who is entittedvote for the election of directors at such rmggtand who complies with the procedure:
forth in this Regulation 16. All nominations by slolders must be made to the Secretary in progégewform and must be timely.

(c) To be timely, a shareholder's notice must be dedivéo or mailed and received at the principal eee offices of the Corporation,
the case of a special meeting of the shareholdethe time the meeting request is made in accesdaiith Regulation 3, or, in the case o
annual meeting, not fewer than 60 nor more thanaé@®ndar days prior to such annual meetprgyided, however, that in the event that pub
announcement of the date of the annual meetingtisnade at least 75 calendar days prior to the ofatee annual meeting and the ani
meeting is held on a date more than one week befoaéter the first anniversary of the date on wattice prior year's annual meeting, was |
notice by the shareholder to be timely must beeseived not later than the close of business ori@ile calendar day following the day
which public announcement is first made of the aéditine annual meeting.

(d) To be in proper written form, such sharehokladtice must set forth or include:

0] the name and address, as they appear on the Ciioptar®ooks, of the shareholder giving the notind of the beneficial owni
if any, on whose behalf the nomination is made;

(ii) a representation that the shareholder giving thieends a holder of record of stock of the Corpmnmatentitled to vote at su
annual meeting and intends to appear in persog prdxy at the annual meeting to nominate the pess@ersons specified in the notice;
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(iii) the class and number of shares of stock of thedatipn owned beneficially and of record by thershalder giving the notic
and by the beneficial owner, if any, on whose bfeth@ nomination is made;

(iv) a description of all arrangements or understandbega/een or among any of (A) the shareholder githey notice, (B) th
beneficial owner on whose behalf the notice is givEC) each nominee and (D) any other person csopesr (naming such person
persons) pursuant to which the nomination or notigna are to be made by the shareholder givingthiee;

(V) such other information regarding each nominee megdy the shareholder giving the notice as wowddguired to t
included in a proxy statement filed pursuant to prexy rules of the Securities and Exchange Cormiorisbad the nominee be
nominated, or intended to be nominated, by the o&Directors; and

(vi) the signed consent of each nominee toesasva director of the Corporation if so elected.

(e) The presiding officer of any annual meeting mathe facts warrant, determine that a nominati@as not made in accordance with
Regulation 16, and if he or she should so deterpfiaeor she will so declare to the meeting, anddéfective nomination will be disregard
Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of thisgRktion 16, a shareholder must also comply withagplicable requirements of 1
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, anduths and regulations thereunder with respeittedanatters set forth in this Regulation

17. Resignation. Any director may resign at any timeglying written notice of his resignation to theaman or the Secretary. A
resignation will be effective upon actual receiptdmy such person or, if later, as of the datetand specified in such written notice.

18. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the BoarDicéctors shall be held immediately after the ahmo@eting of the sharehold:
and at such other time and place either within ithaut the State of Ohio as may from time to tineedetermined by a majority of the Wh
Board. Notice of regular meetings of the Board @EBtors need not be given.

19. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the BoarDicéctors may be called by the Chairman, by thesiBlent, by a Vice Preside
by the Secretary or by any two directors. Noticespécial meetings, stating the place, date and, lsbatl be given to each director by wt
such notice is not waived. Notice must be givemegitpersonally or by mail, telephone, telegramexefacsimile or similar medium
communication not less than twerfgur hours before the designated hour for such imgeBpecial meetings of the Board of Directors rhe
held at such time and place either within or withthe State of Ohio as is determined by a majaftyhe Whole Board or specified in -
notice of any such meeting.

20. Quorum And Vote. At all meetings of the Board ofédgitors, a majority of the total number of diresttren in office will constitute
quorum for the transaction of business. Except ag ke otherwise provided in any Preferred Stockighegion or by this Amended a
Restated Code of Regulations, the act of a majofityhe directors present at any meeting at whicfuaum is present will be the act of
Board of Directors. If a quorum is not present @y aneeting of the Board of Directors, the directpresent thereat may adjourn the met
from time to time to another time or place, withaotice other than announcement at the meeting,augtiorum is present.

21. Action Without A Meeting. Any action that may betlworized or taken at a meeting of the Board of &wes may be authorized
taken without a meeting in a writing or writinggised by all the directors, which writing or writeghall be filed with or entered upon
records of the Corporation.

22. Participation In Meetings By Communications EquipmeMeetings of the Board of Directors or of anymittee of the Board
Directors may be held through any means of comnatioic equipment if all persons participating caarheach other, and such participa
will constitute presence in person at such meeting.

23. Committees. The Board of Directors may from timdihoe create an executive committee or any othernsittee or committees
directors to act in the intervals between meetofgbe Board of Directors and may delegate to sumwhmittee
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or committees any of its authority other than thaffilling vacancies among the Board of Directorsio any committee of the Board
Directors. Each committee shall consist of one arendirectors. The Board of Directors may appoiné @r more directors as alterr
members of any such committee to take the plaedsént committee members at meetings of such cdeemitinless otherwise ordered by
Board of Directors, a majority of the members of mommittee appointed by the Board of Directorsspant to this Regulation 23 st
constitute a quorum at any meeting thereof, ancthef a majority of the members present at a imgett which a quorum is present shal
the act of such committee. Action may be takenrbysuch committee without a meeting by a writingwitings signed by all of its membe
Any such committee shall prescribe its own rulasciling and holding meetings and its method afcedure, subject to any rules prescr
by the Board of Directors, and will keep a writreicord of all action taken by it.

24, Compensation. The Board of Directors may estaltlishcompensation and expense reimbursement polariesrectors in exchan
for service on the Board of Directors and on corteni of the Board of Directors, for attendance agetings of the Board of Directors
committees of the Board of Directors, and for otbenvices by directors to the Corporation or anigo$ubsidiaries.

25. Bylaws. The Board of Directors may adopt Bylaws fiee conduct of its meetings and those of any cdtess of the Board
Directors that are not inconsistent with the Amehded Restated Articles of Incorporation or thisékrded and Restated Code of Regulations

Officers

26. Generally. The Corporation may have a Chairmarctedeby the directors from among their number, stmall have a President, w
shall also be a director, a Secretary and a Treastihe Corporation may also have one or more Yi@sidents and such other officers
assistant officers as the Board of Directors magnappropriate. If the Board of Directors so desifemay elect a Chief Executive Officel
manage the affairs of the Corporation, subjech&direction and control of the Board of Directohdl. of the officers shall be elected by
Board of Directors. Notwithstanding the foregoig, specific action, the Board of Directors may autte the Chairman or the Presider
appoint any person to any office other than Chairnfaesident, Secretary or Treasurer. Any numbeffafes may be held by the same per
and no two offices must be held by the same person.of the offices, other than the office of Pdesit, Secretary and Treasurer, may bt
vacant from time to time as the Board of Directoi@dy determine. In case of the absence or disalofigny officer of the Corporation or
any other reason deemed sufficient by a majoritthefBoard of Directors, the Board of Directors nagjegate the absent or disabled offit
powers or duties to any other officer or to andior.

27. Authority And Duties Of Officers. The officers ofi¢ Corporation shall have such authority and shatform such duties as
customarily incident to their respective offices,as may be specified from time to time by the Bloair Directors, regardless of whether <
authority and duties are customarily incident tohsaffice.

28. Compensation. The compensation of all officers agents of the Corporation who are also memberseoBbard of Directors of tl
Corporation will be fixed by the Board of Directoes by a committee of the Board of Directors. TheaRl of Directors may fix tt
compensation of the other officers and agentsefarporation, or delegate the power to fix suampensation, to the Chief Executive Offi
or any other officer of the Corporation.

29. Succession. The officers of the Corporation willchoffice until their successors are elected punst@ Regulation 26. Any offic
may be removed at any time by the affirmative \a@ta majority of the Whole Board. Any vacancy octwy in any office of the Corporati
may be filled by the Board of Directors or by theaman or President as provided in Regulation 26.

Stock
30. Transfer And Registration @fertificates. The Board of Directors shall havehatity to make such rules and regulations as it

expedient concerning the issuance, transfer aridtragon of certificates for shares and the shegpgesented thereby and may appoint tra
agents and registrars thereof.




31. Substituted Certificates. Any person claiming aifieate for shares to have been lost, stolen atrdged (i) shall make an affida
or affirmation of that fact, (ii) shall give the GQmration and its registrar or registrars and rigmsfer agent or agents a bond of inden
satisfactory to the Board of Directors or a comeaitthereof or to the President or a Vice Presidadtthe Secretary or the Treasurer anc
shall, if required by the Board of Directors or @nmumittee thereof or the officers named in this Ration 31, advertise the fact that
certificate has been lost, stolen or destroyed,redmn a new certificate may be executed and delivef the same tenor and for the s
number of shares as the one alleged to have beerslolen or destroyed.

32. Voting Of Shares Held By The Corporation. Unledseotvise ordered by the Board of Directors, the iBegs, in person or by pro
or proxies appointed by him, shall have full powad authorityon behalf of the Corporation to vote, act and consétit respect to any shai
issued by other corporations and owned by the Catjom.

33. Record Dates And Owners. (a) In order that the @@ation may determine the shareholders entitledatiice of or to vote at a
meeting of shareholders or any adjournment thei@ofp designate an agent to act on behalf of ttaeeholders to call a special meetin
shareholders, or to take any other collective aotio behalf of the shareholders, the Board of Bamscmay fix a record date, which will not
fewer than 7 nor more than 60 calendar days bef@erelate of such meeting. If no record date istfilxg the Board of Directors, the record ¢
for determining shareholders entitled to noticeiofo vote at a meeting of shareholders will bedhee next preceding the dag which notice
is given, or, if notice is waived, the date nex@¢qading the day on which the meeting is held.

(b) The Corporation will be entitled to treat thergon in whose name shares are registered on thes lod the Corporation as the absa
owner thereof, and will not be bound to recognimg equitable or other claim to, or interest in, lswhare on the part of any other per
whether or not the Corporation has knowledge oicadaif the claim or interest, except as expresabyiged by applicable law.

Indemnification and Insurance
34. Indemnification.

(@) The Corporation shall indemnify, to the full extehen permitted by law, any director or officerformer director or officer of tt
Corporation who was or is a party or is threateiodoe made a party to any threatened, pendingropletied action, suit or proceeding, whe
civil, criminal, administrative or investigativeylbeason of the fact that he is or was a membéneoBoard of Directors or an officer, emplo
or agent of the Corporation, or is or was servihtha request of the Corporation as a directostér, officer, employee or agent of anc
corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust thies enterprise. The Corporation shall pay, toftileextent then required by law, expen:
including attorney's fees, incurred by a membethefBoard of Directors in defending any such actguit or proceeding as they are incur
in advance of the final disposition thereof.

(b)  To the full extent then permitted by law, the Cogimn may indemnify employees, agents and othesgoes and may pay expen:
including attorney's fees, incurred by any employagent or other person in defending any actioit, suproceeding as such expenses
incurred, in advance of the final disposition ttodre

(c) The indemnification and payment of expenses praltuethis Regulation 34 shall not be exclusiveanfd shall be in addition to, &
other rights granted to any person seeking indeoatibn under any law, the Amended and Restateitl&stof Incorporation, any agreem
vote of shareholders or disinterested memberseoBtbard of Directors, or otherwise, both as toaactn official capacities and as to actiol
another capacity while he or she is a member oBthead of Directors or an officer, employee or ag&rthe Corporation, and shall continue
to a person who has ceased to be a member of thel B Directors, trustee, officer, employee orragend shall inure to the benefit of
heirs, executors, and administrators of such eopers

35. Insurance. The Corporation may, to the fuleakthen permitted by law and authorized by ther8ad Directors, purchase and main
insurance or furnish similar protection, includimgt not limited to trust funds, letters of creditself- insurance, on behalf of or for any pers
described in Regulation 34 against any liabilitgeated against and incurred by any
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such person in any such capacity, or arising olti®status as such, whether or not the Corporatiaud have the power to indemnify si
person against such liability. Insurance may belpased from or maintained with a person in whieéhGorporation has a financial interest.

36. Agreements. The Corporation, upon approvahleyBoard of Directors, may enter into agreements amy persons who the Corpora
may indemnify under this Amended and Restated @ddRegulations or under law and may undertake thete indemnify such persons ¢
to pay the expenses incurred by them in defendirygaation, suit or proceeding against them, whetierot the Corporation would have
power under law or this Amended and Restated Cb&egulations to indemnify any such person.

General

37. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporatidthend on the thirtyfirst day of December in each calendar year or silclr date as m
be fixed from time to time by the Board of Director

38. Seal. The seal of the Corporation shall beutdrcin form with the name of the Corporation stath@round the margin and the w
"Seal" stamped across the center.

39. Amendments. Except as otherwise provided by dawy the Amended and Restated Articles of Incaapon or this Amended a
Restated Code of Regulations, these Regulatiorengrof them may be amended in any respect or regestl any time, either (i) by t
affirmative vote of the holders of a majority okthioting power of the Corporation, voting togethera single class, or (ii) to the extent as
be permitted by Chapter 1701 of the Ohio Revisededn effect from time to time, by the Board of &itors.

40. Control Share Acquisitions. Section 1701.83thefOhio Revised Code does not apply to “contnare acquisitionsdbf shares of capit
stock of the Corporation.



Exhibit 3.2
AMENDED AND RESTATED ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF
MATERION CORPORATION.

ARTICLE |
The name of the Corporation shall be Materion Catfion (the "Corporation").
ARTICLE Il
The place in the State of Ohio where the Corpon&iprincipal office is to be located is the CifyGleveland, Cuyahoga County.

ARTICLE 1l
A.  Authorized Capital Stock.

The total number of shares of capital stock whiat €Corporation shall have authority to issue 968,000, of which (a) 5,000,0
shares shall be preferred stock, no par value f¢Resl Stock"), and (b) 60,000,000 shares shalkdemon stock, no par value ("Comn
Stock").

B. Preferred Stock.

The Board of Directors of the Corporation (the "Ba shall have authority to issue Preferred Stiwokn time to time in one or mc
classes or series. The express terms of sharedifiteent series of any particular class shalidentical except for such variations as ma
permitted by law. Unless this provision is exprgsabdified by a Preferred Stock Designation (asimafter defined) in accordance with then
applicable law, the holders of Preferred Stock Wél entitled to one vote on each matter submitteal Yote at a meeting of shareholder:
each share of Preferred Stock held of record bl botder as of the record date for such meeting.

ARTICLE IV

The Board shall be authorized hereby to exercispaabers now or hereafter permitted by law provigiights to the Board to adc
amendments to these Amended and Restated Artitlasarporation (i) to fix or change the expressrte of any unissued or treasury share
any class, including, without limitifithe generality of the foregoing: division of sudiages into series and the designation and autt
number of shares of each series; voting rightsioh shares; dividend or distribution rate; datepayfment of dividends or distributions and
dates from which they are cumulative; liquidationce; redemption rights and price; sinkirfund requirements; conversion rights;
restrictions on the issuance of shares of the saries or any other class or series; all as magstablished by resolution of the Board fi
time to time (collectively with the terms of theglerred Stock, a "Preferred Stock Designation"§} @i to include within these Amended ¢
Restated Articles of Incorporation such additigmalvisions, or amendments to any existing provisi@s may hereafter be authorized by law.

ARTICLE V

The Corporation may from time to time, pursuantthorization by the Board and without action bg #hareholders, purchase
otherwise acquire capital stock of the Corporatbrany class or classes in such manner, upon sotstand in such amounts as the B
shall determine; subject, however, to such limatatdr restriction, if any, as is contained in amgf€rred Stock Designation at the time of ¢
purchase or acquisition.

ARTICLE VI
Subject to Article WI of these Amended and Restafaticles of Incorporation and any Preferred Stdoksignation, ar

notwithstanding any provision of the Ohio Reviseatl€ now or hereafter in force requiring for anygmse the vote, consent, waiver or rel
of the holders of shares entitling them to exertisethirds, or any other proportion, of the voting




power of the Corporation or of any class or classeshares thereof, such action, unless otherwigpeessly required by statute or by tr
Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation, mayaken by the vote, consent, waiver or relefseeoholders of shares entitling then
exercise a majority of the voting power of the Qmgtion or of such classes. For purposes of theseniled and Restated Articles
Incorporation, "voting power of the Corporation” ams the aggregate voting power of (a) all the antting shares of Common Stock of
Corporation and (b) all the outstanding sharesgfdass or series of capital stock of the Corponathat has (i) r? hts to distributions senior
those of the Common Stock including, without lirtita, any relative, participating, optional, or ettspecial rights and privileges of, and
qualifications or restrictions on, such shares @heoting rights entitling such shares to votengeally in the election of directors.

ARTICLE VI

Section 1. In addition to any affirmative vote rggd by law or these Amended and Restated Artiofdacorporation, any Relat
Party Transaction shall require the affirmativeevot not less than both a majority of the Corporas outstanding Voting Stock and a majc
of the portion of the Corporation's outstanding iNgtStock excluding the Voting Stock owned by theld®ed Party involved in the Rela
Party Transaction. In the event of any inconsistdretween this Article VIl and any other provisiohthese Amended and Restated Avrticle
Incorporation, this Article VII shall govern.

Section 2. The provisions of Section 1 of this @i VIl shall not be applicable to Related Partyfigactions in which (a) t
aggregate amount of the cash and the fair markeeaf consideration other than cash received paresby holders of outstanding share
each class or series of Voting Stock of the Conpamavho receive cash or other consideration inRleéated Party Transaction is not less
the highest per share price (with appropriate adjests for recapitalizations and for stock spkteck dividends, and other distributions) j
by the Related Party in acquidany of its holdings of each class or series of suoting Stock and (b) the form of considerationeiged by
holders of shares of each class or series of satimy/Stock in cash or the same form of the comaiilen used by the Related Party to acc
the largest percentage of each class or seriaschf\$oting Stock owned by the Related Party.

Section 3. The provisions of Section 1 of this élgiVIl shall not be applicable to any Related Yamansaction expressly approved
by a majority vote of the Continuing Directors bé&tCorporation.

Section 4. For The Purpose Of This Article VII:

€) The term "Related Party Transaction" shall mearaify merger or consolidation of the CorporatioracBubsidiary with
Related Party, irrespective of which party, if eithis the surviving party, (ii) any sale, purchdsase, exchange, transfer, or other transe
(or series of transactions) between the Corporatioa Subsidiary and a Related Party involving dhquisition or disposition of assets
consideration of $5,000,000 or more in value (ekdegnsactions in the ordinary course of busine§i),the issuance or transfer of &
securities of the Corporation or of a SubsidianatBelated Party (other than an issuance or transfecurities which is effected on a pro
basis to all shareholders of the Corporation), ény reclassification of securities of the Corpiarafincluding any reverse stock split) or .
recapitalization or other transaction involving fBerporation or its Subsidiaries that would have éffect of increasing the voting power «
Related Party, except for any mandatory redemp#qgnired by the terms of outstanding securitied, @ the adoption of any plan or propc
for the liquidation or dissolution of the Corpomatiin favor of which a Related Party votes its YigtStock.

(b) The term "Related Party" shall mean (i) any indisdl] corporation, partnership, or other personugror entity whict
together with its Affiliates and Associates, is tieneficial owner of ten percent (10%) or morelbgs than ninety percent (90%) of the Vo
Stock of the Corporation or (i) any such Affiliabe Associate.

(c) A person shall be a "beneficial owner" of ahgi®s of Voting Stock:
(1) Which such person or any of its Affiliates osgbciates beneficially owns, directly or indiregtly

(2) Which such person or any of its Affiliates osgbciates has




(i) the right to acquire (whether such right is e®able immediately or only after the passageimg} pursuant to ai
agreement, arrangement or understanding or upopxieise of conversion rights, exchange rightgravds or options,
otherwise, or

(ii) the right to vote pursuant to any agreememgragement or understanding; or

(3) Which are beneficially owned, directly or inglitly, by any other person with which such persoramy of its Affiliates o
Associates has any agreement, arrangement or tauagirsg for the purpose of acquiring, holding, mgtor disposing of any shares of Vot
Stock.

(d) The terms "Affiliate” and "Associate" shall leathe respective meanings ascribed to such terRsilim 1 2b2 of the Gener.
Rules and Regulations under the Securities Exch@mgeof 1934, as in effect on the date of these Adeehand Restated Articles
Incorporation.

(e) The term "consideration other than cash" as useSleiction 2(a) of this Article Seventh shall incluaégthout limitation
Voting Stock of the Corporation retained by itsstixig shareholders in the event of a merger oraaaion with a Related Party in which
Corporation is the surviving corporation.

()  The term "Subsidiary” shall mean any Affiliate beétCorporation more than fifty percent (50%) of thistanding securities
which representing the right, other than as affébtie events of default, to vote for the electiordwéctors is owned by the Corporation ol
another Subsidiary (or both).

(9) The term "Voting Stock" shall mean all secestf the Corporation entitled to vote generallyhia election of directors.

(h) The term "Continuing Director" shall mean a directdo either (i) was a member of the Board immesdyaprior to the tim
that the Related Party involved in a Related Paransaction became a Related Party, or (ii) wagdated (before his or her initial electior
a director) as a Continuing Director by a majodfythe then Continuing Directors.

Section 5. A majority of the Continuing Directorisai have the power and duty to determine concélgifor the purposes of tt
Article VII, on the basis of information known them, (a) whether a person is a Related Party, ligtver a person is an Affiliate or Assoc
of another, (c) whether a transaction between the@ation or a Subsidiary and a Related Partylimsothe acquisition or disposition
assets for consideration of 55,000,000 or morealne; (d) the fair market value of consideratidmeotthan cash received by holders of Vc
Stock in a Related Party Transaction, and (e) sdicar matters with respect to which a determinatipimterpretation is required under 1
Article VII.

Section 6. Nothing contained in this Article Vlladhbe construed to relieve any Related Party femy fiduciary or other obligation
imposed by law.

Section 7. Notwithstanding any other provisionhifde Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporaiidhe Amended and Rests
Code of Regulations of the Corporation or any siavi of law which might otherwise permit a lessetey but in addition to any affirmati
vote of the holders of any particular class oresenf stock required by law, these Amended andaRsasbtArticles of Incorporation or t
Amended and Restated Code of Regulations of thpdZation, the affirmative vote of the holders oflesst sixty-six and twdhirds percer
(66 2/3%) of the Corporation's Voting Stock, votiga single class, shall be required to alter na@nee adopt any provision inconsistent v
or repeal this Article VII.

ARTICLE VIlI
Except as may be provided in any Preferred Stockidbdation, no holder of any shares of capital sticthe Corporation shall ha

any preemptive right to acquire any shares of ueidsapital stock of any class or series, now ogdfeer authorized, or any treasury shart
securities convertible into such shares or carrgimght to subscribe to or acquire such sharespital stock.




ARTICLE IX

Any and every statute of the State of Ohio hereafteacted, (i) whereby the rights, powers or peiyls of corporations or of
shareholders of corporations organized under ths tzf the State of Ohio are increased or diministreth any way affected, or (ii) where
effect is given to the action taken by any numkbess than all, of the shareholders of any sucharatjon, or (iii) whereby the authority of 1
directors to adopt amendments to the articles afriporation without shareholder approval shall keaaded, will apply to the Corporati
and will be binding not only upon the Corporatian ipon every shareholder of the Corporation tostiae extent as if such statute had
in force at the date of filing these Amended andt&ed Articles of Incorporation in the office bketSecretary of State of Ohio.

ARTICLE X

Except as may be otherwise provided in any PredeBteck Designation, the number of the directorthefCorporation will not be le
than 9 nor more than 18 as may be determined fiora to time only (i) by a vote of a majority of thetal number of directors that 1
Corporation would have if there were no vacancieshe Board, or (ii) by the affirmative vote of thelders of at least 50% of the vot
power of the Corporation, voting together as alsimtpss. Until the 2017 annual meeting of shadrsl| the directors, other than those
may be expressly elected by virtue of the termargf Preferred Stock Designation, will be classifrgth respect to the time for which tf
severally hold office into three classes, as neaglyal in size as possible and consisting of rest than three directors in each class. Dire
elected at or prior to the 2014 annual meetinghafesholders will hold office for the term of threears from the date of their election and |
the election of their successors. At the 2015 anmegting of shareholders, the directors electeslttzeed those directors whose terms e
at that meeting will hold office for the term ofdwears from the date of their election and uihi &lection of their successors. At the 2
annual meeting of shareholders, the directors edeitt succeed those directors whose terms expitetimeeting will hold office for the tel
of one year from the date of their election andluhe election of their successors. At the 201Awmh meeting of shareholders, and ¢
annual meeting of shareholders thereafter, eaettdir will be elected for a term expiring at thextn@nnual meeting of shareholders and
the election of their successors. Except as maptherwise provided in any Preferred Stock Desigmatat each annual meeting of
shareholders of the Corporation, the successotisetairectors whose terms expire at that meetiradl ie elected by a plurality vote of
votes cast at such meeting. No holder of sharesyptlass of capital stock of the Corporation shaile the right to cumulate the voting po
in respect of those shares in the election of thrsc and the right to cumulate the voting powethia election of directors as providec
Section 1701.55 of the Ohio Revised Code is hespiegifically denied to all holders of shares of alass of capital stock of the Corporat
No decrease in the number of directors constitutiegBoard of Directors may shorten the term of imeymbent director. Election of direct
of the Corporation need not be by written balloesa requested by the presiding officer or by thieldrs of a majority of the voting power
the Corporation present in person or representqutdiyy at a meeting of the shareholders at whichctiors are to be elected.

ARTICLE XI

These Amended and Restated Articles of Incorpanatigpersede the existing Articles of Incorporatibthe Corporation.



Exhibit 11

MATERION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
COMPUTATION OF PER SHARE EARNINGS

Second Quarter Ended First Half Ended
Jun. 27, Jun. 28, Jun. 27, Jun. 28,

(Thousands, except per share amounts) 2014 2013 2014 2013
Basic:

Average shares outstanding 20,64 20,56¢ 20,62¢ 20,52«

Net Income $ 9,97/ % 4,158 % 17,308 $ 10,94(

Per share amount $ 0.4t $ 02C $ 084 % 0.5¢
Diluted:

Average shares outstanding 20,64 20,56¢ 20,62¢ 20,52«

Dilutive stock securities based on the treasurgkstoethod using

average market price 35¢ 302 35¢& 321

Totals 21,00: 20,86 20,98: 20,84:
Net Income $ 997/ % 4,158 $ 17,308 $ 10,94(
Per share amount $ 047 $ 02C $ 0.8z $ 0.5Z

Stock appreciation rights with exercise pricesxoess of the average market price of common sharaing 409,000 for the quarter
ended June 27, 2014 and 523,000 for the quartedeiuhe 28, 2013 and 562,000 for the first haledntiine 27, 2014 and 470,000 for the
half ended June 28, 2013 were excluded from theialil calculation as their effect would have besti-dilutive.



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Richard J. Hipple, certify that:

1) | have reviewed this quarterly report on Foi@rQ of Materion Corporation (the “registrant”);

2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not comajnuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgis. under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,adner financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, angtii@ periods presented in this report;

4) The registransg other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure conteoid procedures (;
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15€k)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange #
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd dave:

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduries tiesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiolatneg to the registrant, including its consolidateubsidiaries, is mas
known to us by others within those entities, paitidy during the period in which this report isirige prepared,;

b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atauoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtiis report our conclusiol
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contals procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetiis report based «
such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the stegnts internal control over financial reporting thatcomed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrm® that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finalceporting; and

5) The registrang other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal @rdgver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal controemfinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect tbgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refinancial
information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanagement or other employees who have a signifioalet in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

/sl Richard J. Hipple

Dated: August 1, 2014 Richard J. Hipple

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

[, John D. Grampa, certify that:

1) | have reviewed this quarterly report on Foi@rQ of Materion Corporation (the “registrant”);

2) Based on my knowledge, this report does not comajnuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact necessar
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgis. under which such statements were made, nt#adisg with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

3) Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,adner financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, angtii@ periods presented in this report;

4) The registransg other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure conteoid procedures (;
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15€k)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange #
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd dave:

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduries tiesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiolatneg to the registrant, including its consolidateubsidiaries, is mas
known to us by others within those entities, paitidy during the period in which this report isirige prepared,;

b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in atauoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsadisclosure controls and procedures and presémtiis report our conclusiol
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contals procedures, as of the end of the period coveyetiis report based «
such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the stegnts internal control over financial reporting thatcomed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrm® that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finalceporting; and

5) The registrang other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal @rdgver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal controemfinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect tbgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refinancial
information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanagement or other employees who have a signifioalet in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

/sl John D. Grampa

Dated: August 1, 2014 John D. Grampa

Senior Vice President Finance and Chief Financfater



Exhibit 32

Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedipnirso Section 906 of the Sarbari@dey Act of 2002, in connection with the fili
of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Materiorr@wation (the “Companyjor the quarter ended June 27, 2014, as filed th#hSecuritie

and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (thedR®, each of the undersigned officers of the @amy certifies that, to such officer’
knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSafction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangedk 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m
780(d)), and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly gmets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of -
Company as of the dates and for the periods exguieashe Report.
Dated: August 1, 2014
/s/ Richard J. Hipple

Richard J. Hipple
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

/sl John D. Grampa
John D. Grampa
Senior Vice President Finance and Chief Financfaté&r




Exhibit 95
Materion Corporation

Mine Safety Disclosure Pursuant to Section 1503(af the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act for the Fiscal Quarter Endel June 27, 2014

Materion Natural Resources Inc., a wholly ownedsadibry, operates a beryllium mining complex in 8tate of Utah which is regula
by both the U.S. Mine Safety and Health Administra{("MSHA”") and state regulatory agencies. We endeavor to cbodu mining and oth
operations in compliance with all applicable fediesdate and local laws and regulations. We presgotmation below regarding certi
mining safety and health citations which MSHA hagiéd with respect to our mining operations.

Section 1503(a) of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Refand Consumer Protection Act (“Section 1503(a@uires the Company to pres
certain information regarding mining safety inperiodic reports filed with the Securities and Exege Commission.

The following table reflects citations, orders amatices issued to Materion Natural Resources IgcMISHA during the fiscal quart
ended June 27, 2014 (the “Reporting Perioaliyl contains certain additional information as nexgliby Section 1503(a) and Item 10¢
Regulation S-K, including information regarding nig-related fatalities, proposed assessments from M3iA4 legal actions [ega
Actions”) before the Federal Mine Safety and Health Reviem@ssion, an independent adjudicative agency tratigles administrative tri
and appellate review of legal disputes arising uricke Mine Act.

Included below is the information required by Sextl503(a) with respect to the beryllium mining @eax (MSHA Identification Numbe
4200706) for the Reporting Period:

(A) Total number of alleged violations of mandatory Itre@r safety standards that could significantlyd asubstantiall
contribute to the cause and effect of a mine safetyealth hazard under Section 104 of the MinefAcivhich Materior

Natural Resources Inc. received a citation from MSH 0
(B) Total number of orders issued under Section 10df(l)e Mine Act 0
© Total number of citations and orders for allegediaimantable failure by Materion Natural Resourags to comply witt

mandatory health or safety standards under Setfid(d) of the Mine Act 0
(D) Total number of alleged flagrant violations undect®n 110(b)(2) of the Mine Act 0
(E) Total number of imminent danger orders issued uSaetion 107(a) of the Mine Act 0
(3] Total dollar value of proposed assessments from M8hrer the Mine Act $100
(G) Total number of mining-related fatalities 0
(H) Received notice from MSHA of a pattern of violasamnder Section 104(e) of the Mine Act No
()] Received notice from MSHA of the potential to haveattern of violations under Section 104(e) ofl¢tiee Act No
J) Total number of Legal Actions pending as of the ks of the Reporting Period 0

o

(K) Total number of Legal Actions instituted during fReporting Period
(L) Total number of Legal Actions resolved during threpBrting Period 0



